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THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF MANITOBA 

2:30 P . M .  Wednesday, March 28 , 1962 

Opening Prayer by Mr. Speaker. 

MR . SPEAKER: Presenting Petitions . 
Reading and Receiving Petitions. 
Presenting Reports by Standing and Special Committees . 
Notice of Motion. 
Introduction of Bills .  

HON. STERLING R .  LYON, Q .  C .  (Attorney-Gene ral)(Fort Garry) introduced Bill No . 106 , 
An Act to amend Certain Provisions of The Statute Law and to correct Certain Typographical 
Errors in the Statutes .  

MR . MORRIS GRAY (lnkster): For many years we have had so many bills -- it costs 
money to print it or to introduce it time again. I want to direct a question to the Honourable the 
Attorney-General . You say a bill is going through the Legislative Counsel and it goes through 
the Ministers department. Why should there be errors in a bill unless the condition changes? 
But this is correcting errors, whether a period or a comma or a spelling, what is it and why 
should it come up here:? It costs money to do ii. 

MR . T .  P. HILLHOUSE, Q. C .  (Selkirk) : I would like to ask the Minister a question too . 
Why do they have rubber on the end of pencils ?  

MR . SPEAKER: Commi�e of t he  Whole House. 
MR . DUFF ROBLIN (Premier of Manitoba)(Wolseley): Mr . Speaker, I beg to move , se­

conded by the Honourable the Attorney-General , that Mr . Speaker do now leave the chair and 
the House resolve itself into a Committee of the Whole to consider the proposed resolution 
standing in my name . 

Mr. Speaker presented the motion and after a voice vote declared the motion carried ru:id 
the House resolved itself into a Committee of the Whole House with the Honourable Member for 
St. Matthews in the Chair. 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE HOUSE 

MR . ROBLIN: Mr. Chairman, His Honour the Lieutenant-Governor, having been informed 
of the subject matter of the proposed resolution, recommends it to the House . 

MR . CHAIRMAN : Resolved that it is expedient to bring in a measure to amend The Metro­
politan Winnipeg Act by providing, among other matters , that the committee or commissioners 
to review the field of common municipal services, for the appointment of which in the year 
196 5 ,  and payment of the cost thereof, provision is made in Section 210 of The Metropolitan 
Winnipeg Act, may be appointed before the year 1965 . 

MR . ROBLIN: Mr. Chairman, I think the resolution pretty well speaks for itself. In the 
amendment to The Metropolitan Act, which will be given first reading I trust this afternoon, 
there is provision for altering the date at which the Committee of Review provided for in that 
Act may be called into action, and for that reason it seemed advisable to proceed by way of a 
message from His Honour . 

MR . GRAY: With my apology to my leader, I am going to express, an opinion of my own in 
connection with this resolution. We have supported the Metro , and there is no question about 
a Metro now . My first question is, the reason for it now . There must be a reason for giving 
them the power to consider it tomorrow instead of 1965. There must have been a reason . When 
we have �ven them the authority in '65 , there must have been a reason then -- why now ?  

No . 2 .  The Metro Assessment Commissioner has made a re-assessment recently and 
have raised -- in many cases at least because I have hundreds of enquiries--raised the assess­
ment, particularly on the land and, in some cases, even on the homes; and, of course , the 
Metro is being blamed. If the Metro Chairman or the Metro Council should come up before the 
court of the people today , I am sure they'd approve their hanging on the market square for to­
morrow morning. But I think the public should know that an assessment commissioner is not 
responsible to both the municipality or the Metro. He's hired or could be fired in ca.se he's 
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(Mr. Gray, cont'd . )  . • • •  not carrying out his duties right , but he cannot be criticized and 
he has full power to do it. The reason that I mention this is there is a real revolution -- or 
evolution among the working class for the increase of the assessment. Of course they don't 
know what would be the increase of the taxes because the tax bill has not yet been sent out, but 
the assessment indicates that there'll be quite an increase in the taxes. I think perhaps this 
should be brought to the attention, particularly of those who cannot afford to pay higher taxes , 
tha� the Metro is not entirely to blame . 

· 

Once we have supported and created the Metro, I think it is our duty to support them . We 
know that they are doing something which is radically wrong, but I don't think they are doing 
it, so my opinion is that something should be done in this connection to tell the people about it. 
There are rumours of reductions of assessment and so on. I think this could be cleared. I 
may tell you this, Mr. Speaker ,  this House ,  that there is a terrible unrest, a serious unrest 
among the taxpayers on the lower homes -- working men's homes -- blaming that this govern­
ment has created something in order to get money out of them for their own purpose only. I 
don't think it's right and I think the Premier's duty is that this Information should be in some 
way submitted to the people . Of course I am very anxious to know what is the' reason to give 
them that power now instead of waiting until 165 . 

MR . ROBLIN: If I may say a word or two in response to my honourable friend, Mr. Chair- . 
man , I think that when we have second reading of the bill there'll be a pretty full explanation as 
to the purposes that are behind the government's move in this connection, and I'll be glad to 
give that explanation then if that might be satisfactory. 

I would also like , however, to thank my honourable friend for his reference to the assess­
ment question, because he is perfectly right and I think it should be poilited out that the assess­
'ment operation under Metro is carried out as an independent operation. It is not under the 
specific control of the Metro staff in the usual way • .  In fact, if one examines the Metro Bill you 
will find that the assessment commissioner under Metro , in the Winnipeg area, operates under 
the'.terms of the Winnipeg Charter .  I think that's very important because the assessment com­
missioner and his assistants are deemed to be assessment commissioners, etcetera, for the 
City of Winnipeg and operate under the provisions of the City of Winnipeg Charter with respect 
to assessments . The Metropolitan Act contains no provisions in instructing the Director of 

.·Assessment. as to the manner in which he shall make his assessments , except to say that he is 
bound by the assessment provisions of the Winnipeg and St. Boniface Charters in respect of 
these municipalities and by The Mtinicipal Act in respect of other area municipalities ,  except 
where these municipalities may have special assessment provisions contained in their respec­
tive charters. So it is important to note that this function of assessment is not one which is 
within the policy decision of the. Metropolitan Council. It's·  true that the metropolitan assessor 
is paid from their sources and it is in that respect he ·is an official of the Metropolitan Council , 
but in carrying out his assessment , he is bound by the provisions of the Winnipeg Charter; the 
provisions of the St. Boniface Charter ; the provisions of any other special charters that exist; 
or, lacking those, by the provisions of The Municipal Board Act itself. So that means that the 
function of assessment is carried out in a strictly independent way in accordance with those 
Statutes .  

MR . GILDAS MOLGAT (Leader o f  the Opposition) (Ste . Rose) : Mr . Chairman, the Minis­
ter has indicated that one of the provisions here is to set up earlier time for the review. The 
resolution , however ,  says: •'by providing among other matters . "  Could. the First Minister in­
dicate what other matters are_al!!lo coming up in the Bill ? 

MR . ROBLIN: Mr. Chairman, I think I'd like to save that for second reading. We're just 
dealing with the financial provisions at the moment and I'll deal with the matter at length -­
some great length I think, later on. 

MR . MOLGAT : Mr. Chairman, are there other proposals to come from the government 
with regard to Metropolitan Government or is this the only Bill and the only measures that will 
be considered at this session? 

MR. ROBLIN: I don't know what other measures will be considered at this Session, Mr . 
Chairman, because anyone can bring in a Bill on Metro , but as far as we are concerned, this 
will be our Bill for the Metro situation. 

MR. RUSSELL PAULLEY (Leader of the New Democratic Party)(Radisson) : Mr. Chairman, 
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(Mr. Paulley, cont'd . )  • . . .  this resolution deals with the question of setting up either a 
committee or a commission. The provisions of course in The Municipal Act or The Metro­
politan Act, the provision is there for either one . I wonder if the Minister might indicate 
which method is going to be chosen by the government at this stage ? 

In addition to that, Mr . Chairman, I would like to suggest to him , and I guess I could do 
this on second reading just as well, that there has been some speculation in the press that what 
the government has in mind is an advisory committee of the area municipalities working in con­
junction with Metro ori the problems that are being faced at the present time , and I suggest that 
the problems are two-way. Some of them are the result of activities of the area municipali­
ties as well as activities in Metro itself, but I would like to suggest to the Honourable the 
First Minister that if this is to be in accordance with newspaper speculation of a committee of 
this type ,  I'd like to suggest to him that there should be direct government representation on 
any committee that is set up for this purpose. I don't think that it would be sufficient enough, 
Mr. Chairman, to set up what has been suggested as more or less of a committee comprising 
representatives of the area municipalities and Metro without governmental participation to the 
fullest degree. 

I stated before and reiterate now that, to me , the problems that are being faced in the 
Greater Winnipeg area are a three-way responsibility and I would not like to see any Commit­
tee , that's set up to review the progress that has been made since the setting up of Metro , un­
less there's full governmental participation and representation into all aspects of the situation. 
I wonder whether or not the First Minister may give us some indication at this time as to what 
the government has in mind as to the two alternatives . 

MR .  ROBLIN: I think I wo_uld be correct in saying that we have merely duplicated the 
language of the original statute 'here and that it would be premature for me to answer that ques­
tion at the present time.  I do agree , however, that the other points my honourable friend 
raised would be suitable matters for debate . 

MR .  MOLGAT: Mr . Chairman, in reply to my question, the First Minister indicated 
that he was referring here only to the portions that would cost money. We can then assume 
that there are no other financial considerations in the Bill, or bills ,  that will be presented in 
the matter of Metro. 

MR. ROBLIN: That is a fair assumption, Mr . Chairman. 
MR . CHAIRMAN: Resolution be adopted. Committee rise and report. Call in the 

Speaker. 
Mr. Speaker, the Committee of the Whole has considered a certain resolution, requested 

me to report the same and ask leave to sit again. 
MR .  W. G. MARTIN (St. Matthews) : Mr. Speaker, I beg to move, seconded by the Hon-

ourable Member for Swan River, that the report of the Committee be received. 
Mr. Speaker presented the motion and after a voice vote declared the motion carried. 
MR :  ROBLIN introduced Bill No . 100 , An Act to Amend The Metropolitan Winnipeg Act. 
MR .  SPEAKER: Before I call the Orders of the Day, I should like to introduce to the 

members of the Legislative Assembly, 33 pupils from Deer Lodge Junior High School . They 
are under the gUidance of their teacher , Mrs. Joyce Littlejohn. The school is situated in 
St. James constituency and is represented in the House by the Honourable Mr . Stanes.  I am 
sure that the students this afternoon will enjoy their visit with us and they may take back with 
them good impressions of the lawmakers of Manitoba. They will also have a chance to view , 
at first hand, people that pass the money that make their school and their education possible 
in the Province of Manitoba. 

Orders of the Day. 
MR .  GRAY: Mr. Speaker, in my reading -- I want to direct a question to the Provincial 

Treasurer.  In my reading of the press this morning, I understand that some statement had 
been made by the Provincial Treasurer that the bond sale issue will likely terminate very soon 
because, according to my understanding, that the sales are somewhat behind last year . I 
don't know if I would be in order to urge the Provincial Treasurer not to stop the sale but carry 
on. It doesn't cost any more money and let's see what the people are going to do within a week 
or two or three and not c ut out because they don't come to the subscription so soon. Chances 
are they are waiting for their April 1st wages or salary, and I certainly would not like it to be 
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(Mr. Gray, cont'd . )  • • • •  on record that the sale is a failure , because I don't want to give 
this comfort to the brokers , bankers and investment companies • .  

MR . SPEAKER: Orders of the Day. The Honourable Member for St. Boniface . 
MR . LAURENT DESJARDINS (St. ·Boniface) :  Mr. Speaker, I just wanted to remind the 

members of the House and the members of the Press Gallery that the annual "Pea Soup Night" 
held every year in St .  Boniface will be held at the Cercle-Quvrier at 8 :3 0  this evening • 

. MR . SPEAKER: Orders of the Day. 
HON . GEORGE HUTTON (Minister of Agriculture)(Rockwood-Iberville): Mr . Speaker, 

before the Orders of the Day, I would like to present the latest forecast of the Flood Forecast­
ing Committee . They met this morning to review and re-assess the flood prospects on the 
Red and Assiniboine rivers. The Committee reports , since the last meeting held on March 
20th, favourable temperature and precipitation conditions have prevailed over both the· Red 
and Assiniboine basins. Precipitation over the Red River Basin has been less than normal . 

Snowfall on: the Assiniboine basin has also been light. The weather in the last week has 
been mild enough to cause release of water from snow-melt. At the same time, the rate of re­
lease has been slow enough to permit the snow-melt water to infiltrate gradually into the 
ground. This has reduced the amount of snow-cover available for run-off. In view .of these 
favourable conditions , the Committee reports that the prospects of flooding on both the Red 
and Assiniboine rivers have lessened. 

On the basis of calculations which have just been completed, the Committee concludes that, 
with normal precipitation and temperatures during the melting period, the stage at J�es 
Avenue will be about 18 feet city datum which is ordinarily considered to be the first flood 
stage , while 26 1/2 feet city datum corresponds to the tops of the major dikes in the Greater 
Winnipeg area. 

The Spring peak discharge now estimated at Emerson indicates that the flow at that point 
and along the Red River downstream from Winnipeg will be confined within its dikes and will 
approximately correspond to peaks which occurred in 1945, 1949 , 1960 . The Committee ad­
vises that the peak discharges calculated for the Assiniboine River a week ago have now been 
reduced. Calculations show that the river will be contained within its banks over most of its 
course . Some low-lying areas in the Assiniboine Valley may experience minor flooding, but 
the area involved is not likely to be significant. 

The Committee points out that we are just entering the break-up period, and that while 
recent conditions have been favourable and have indicated a loweriiig in the previously predic­
ted river levels , abnormal conditions of precipitation and temperature could still occur over 
the watershed in time to adversely affect the present outlook . The situation will be under con­
stant surveillance by the Committee and further forecasts will be issued as conditions warrant. 

MR. ELMAN GUTTORMSON (St . George): Mr . Speaker, ! .have a question I would like to 
direct to the Attorney-General . A Crown witness giving evidence at a Preliminary Hearing 
in Minnedosa has testified that he was persuaded by the Crown Prosecutor and the police in 
that area to plead guilty to a charge that he did not feel that he was guilty of, and subsequently 
was sentenced to gaol after pleading guilty. This is a serious allegation and I wonder if the 
Attorney-General has investigated the complaint . . 

MR. LYON: Mr. Speaker, this matter arises in a trial which is presently subjudice be­
fore a Court of this province and I would not like to make any comment on the subject matter 
until such time as the present trial is concluded and until such further time as some formal 
evidence of this matter ,  other than through the newspaper, has come to my attention. 

MR . MOLGAT: Mr. Speaker , before the Orders of the Day, I would like to direct a 
question to the Minister of Welfare. Has his department completed yet the review of The 
Social Allowances Act ? Will it be forwarding the $10 . 00 increase in the pension that the Fed-. 
eral Government put through? 

HON. JOHN. A .  CHRISTIANSON (Minister of Welfare) (Portage La Prairie): Mr. Speaker , 
the District Supervisors are presently meeting in their regular monthly meeting and they are 
reviewing the regulations under The Social Allowances Act. We have also asked the Depart­
ment of Health to conduct a further study of the food allowances permitted under The Social 
Allowances Act to determine as to their adequacy. These matters will all be referred to the 
Welfare Advisory Committee which will be meeting in late April or early May. 
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MR . NELSON SHOEMAKER (Gladstone): Mr . Speaker, before the Orders of the Day are 
proceeded with, I would like to direct a question to the Honourable the Minister of Agriculture. 
I would like him to define "agricultural machinery" as set out in Clause (1) (a) of Section 10 of 
The Gasoline Tax Act. 

MR . HUTTON: I didn't know that I was considered to be a person who was qualified to 
give legal explanations, and I wouldn't undertake to do so . 

MR . SHOEMAKER: Mr. Speaker, a supplementary question. Does he consider a farm 
welder that is operated by a tractor -- that is a tractor-driven farm welder -- does he consid­
er that a piece of agricultural machinery? He is a farmer and should be able to answer that 
one . Wo\lld the farmer be entitled to a tax rebate when he used gasoline for that express 
purpose? 

MR . ROBLIN: I think that the question ought properly to be directed to me because it in­
volves the administration of The Gasoline Tax Act. I'll be glad to take my honourable friend' s  
question a s  notice and see if there is any information that I can give him . 

MR . SPEAKER: Orders of the Day. 
MR . GUTTORMSON: Mr . Speaker , a subsequent question to the one I asked the Attorney­

General. When he said it couldn't be answered now, did he mean not until the Preliminary 
Hearing is completed or until the matter goes to the Court of Queen' s Bench and then is finish­
ed there ? Is that what he meant? 

MR . LYON: Mr . Speaker; all that I know is what I have read in the newspaper and my 
comment with respect to that, based on my honourable friend' s question, was that this alleged 
statement was made during the course of a preliminary enquiry. I would not wish to comment 
any further on it until such time as that legal matter,  that inquiry and trial is settled; and 
furthermore , what I would like: to do is see the actual transcript of the evidence which I under­
stand is just in the course of going in. 

MR . SPEAKER: Second reading of Bill No . 48 . The Honourable the Minister of Health. 
HON . GEO . JOHNSON (Minister of Health ) (Gimli) presented Bill 48 , An Act to Amend 

The Hospitals Act, for second reading. 
· 

Mr. Speaker presented the motion and after a voice vote declared the motion carried. 
MR. SPEAKER: Second reading of Bill No. 6 9 ,  The Honourable the Acting Minister of 

Municipal Affairs. 
HON. JOHN THOMPSON, Q. C. (Acting Minister of Municipal Affairs)(Virden) presented 

Bill 69,  An Act to Amend The Municipal Board Act, for second reading. 
Mr . Speaker presented the motion . 
MR . THOMPSON: Mr . Speaker, part of the proposed bill is routine and deals with pro­

cedure . There are certain provisions which I might mention. One is a provision which clari­
fies the notices which should be given on a hearing. It is provided here that notices shall be 
given by the applicant before the Municipal Board for any hearing. 

Another matter which might be mentioned is that dealing with the estimates of the cost of 
supervision of municipalities which are under the supervision, financially, of the Municipal 
Board. In one of the sections we are removing the ceiling of one-eighth of one percent , which 
is set forth at the present time as the estimate which must be given in the existing legislation. 

A third provision which I could mention relates to the report which is presented annually 
by the Municipal Board. This provision before us provides for a summary report in less de­
tail than that which has hitherto been the case. Because of the great number of cases now be­
fore the Municipal Board, it is felt that summaries of these cases in the annual report would 
be adequate . Of course , the information which comes before the Board would be available to 
anyone seeking it at any time . 

Mr. Speaker put the question and after a voice vote declared the motion carried. 
MR . SPEAKER: Adjourned debate on the proposed resolution proposed by the Honourable 

the Minister of Welfare . The Honourable Member for Rhineland. 
MR . J. M .  FROESE (Rhineland) : Mr . Speaker, this resolution that we are dealing with 

on the contributory pension scheme , whereby we're going to repeal present Section 94A and 
substituting it with a new section, my main concern, and it is a main concern, is that what­
ever legislation is brought forward that it be permissible legislation only. I do not favour any 
compulsory scheme in connection with contributory old age pensions . We know from the past 
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(Mr. Froese , cont'd. ) . • • • • •  that, in some cases ,  we've had plans come up, contri-
butory plans , and then later on we find that these are not voluntary plans but compulsory plans . 
I think our Hospital Plan was one of them . I don't think we should force this on the people , but 
any plan that is brought forward should be good enough, have merit of its own that would in it­
self sell itself to the people . 

We know, also , that there are many small concerns today which probably do not have a 
pension plan of their own and who might want to avail themselves of such a plan, and, there­
fore , it could turn out to be not a voluntary plan but in many cases a compulsory plan. I would 
like to have the assurance of the Minister that this is going to be a voluntary plan and not one 
that is going to be forced on the people . 

Mr. Speaker put the question and after a voice vote declared the motion carried. 
MR. ROBLIN: Mr. Speaker , I think we had better have a recorded vote on this division, 

if you please. 
MR . SPEAKER: Call in the members . 
The question before the House is the proposed resolution proposed by the Honourable the 

Minister of Welfare . Whereas the government of Canada • . • .  

A standing vote was taken, the result being as follows: 
YEAS: Messrs. Alexander, Baizley, Bjornson, Campbell ,  Carron , Christianson, 

Corbett, Cowan, Desjardins , Dow, Froese , Gray, Groves , Guttormson, Hamilton, Harris, 
Hillhouse , Hryhorczuk, Hutton, I;gebrigtson, Jeal!!lotte, Johnson (Assiniboia) , Johnson (Gimli) , 
Klym, Lissaman, Lyon, McKellar, McLean, Martin, Molgat, Orlikow, Paulley, Peters , 
Prefontaine , Reid, Roblin, Roberts, Scarth, Schreyer, Seaborn, Shewman, Shoemaker, 
Smellie, Stanes, Strickland, Tanchak, Thompson, Wagner ,  Watt, Weir , Witney , Wright and 
Mrs .  Morrison. 

NAYS: Nil 
MR. CLERK: Yeas , 53;  Nays, Nil . 
MR . SPEAKER: I declare the motion carried. 
Committee of the Whole House • 

MR. ROBLIN: Mr . Speaker, may I ask you to call as the next item of business the pro­
posed resolution on page 4 Respecting the Royal Commission on Health Services that stands in 
the name of the Honourable Minister of Health. 

MR . SPEAKER: Proposed resolution standing in the name of the Honourable Minister of 
Health. 

MR . JOHNSON (Gimli) : Mr . Speaker, I beg to move , seconded by the Honourable the 
Minister of Labour , that WHEREAS a Royal Commission on Health Services has been appointed 
by the Government of Canada to make a comprehensive and independent study of the existing 
facilities and the future need for health services .for the people of Canada and the resources to 
provide such services ,  and to recommend such measure s ,  consistent with the constitutional 
division of legislative powers in Canada, as the Commissioners believe will ensure that the 
best possible health care is available to all Canadians ; 

AND WHEREAS the Government of Manitoba has placed before the Commission its views 
as to existing facilities and services in the Province of Manitoba, its proposals for their im-
provement, and its plans for future development; . 

AND WHEREAS The Government of Manitoba has proposed to the Commission that together 
with the proposals for financing health services a plan for comprehensive medical care cover­
age should be introduced, based on three essential principles: 

(1) That it be universally available to all citizens of Manitoba ;  
(2) That i t  b e  at a stipulated premium within the range of the great majority o f  the 

citizens of Manitoba; 
(3) That it be voluntary. 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that this House is of the opinion that subject to federal 

participation the best interests of the people of Manitoba will be served by a plan of medical 
i.il.surance which is universally available, on a voluntary basis , at a stipulated premium within 
the range of the great majority of the citizens of Manitoba. 

Mr � Speaker presented the motion. 
MR . JOHNSON (GimJi): Mr . Sp eaker , in speaking to this proposed resolution before the 
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(Mr. Jobnson, (Gimli) , cont'd.) • • • • • •  House , I should explain that the submission of 
this government recognize that the Royal Commission would be faced with a multitude of policy 
and fiscal considerations before it would approach the details of the health care plan with any 
clarity. I would call your attention to the array of health services and health facilities that 
are discussed in the government brief to the Royal Commission, which I have distributed 
earlier , and I call your attention to the fact that these services and facilities must become 
available before a comprehensive health care plan can become a reality. We have , we believe , 
reported these matters faithfully to the Royal Commission and, I might say, that if a health 
care plan were introduced tomorrow it would not materially affect the amount or distribution 
of medical care available. 

It is quite obvious that increasing federal participation in the financing of health facilities 
and services is a necessary prerequisite, as i>ointed out in this brief, and we look to the Royal 
Commission on Health Services to make this point .  Because it is obvious that all our needs 
cannot be met overnight, the manner in which federal assistance comes forth and the sequence 
of priority that is established, will very much affect our programming at the provincial level. 
Meanwhile, we have considered it important to place before the commission three basic prin­
ciples which, in the opinion of this government, should guide any planning for a comprehensive 
care plan. 

The first of these principles -- I feel the need of the resolution is in presenting these three 
principles to the commission and which we wish endorsed -- suggested that such a plan should 
be universally available to all the citizens, and in the brief we -- and I quote: "medical care is 
a universal need of all Manitobans. Whatever plan that is developed, therefore, should be . 
available to them regardless of where they live ; regardless of their age; regardless of their 
medical condition; or indeed their income . "  Also, the philosophy of this government to the 
problem of health and medical services for our citizens is that the individual has the right :ind 
the responsibility to provide for his needs . Government , therefore, quickly becomes involved 
in providing a universal opportunity for all citizens to avail themselves of essential health and 
medical services. Now such opportunity of course must be practical, and to make the oppor­
tunity practical represents the real role of government. 

The device recommended to the Royal Commission is outlined in the second essential 
principle underlying this resolution, that comprehensive medical care coverage should be pro­
vided at a stipulated premium within the range of a great majority of the citizens of Manitoba; 
and, by this principle , Manitoba simply confirms its brief that there is still merit in consid­
ering the premium as a means of bringing home to . subscribers that the plan belongs to them 
and that their good sense in the use of a plan would have the effect of keeping costs down. By 
stipulated premium it was simply meant to emphasize that a premium that was to be practical 
and to be bodily appealing would, of necessity, require subsidy. During the delivery of the 
brief and during the subsequent cross-examination, it was explained that the implementation of 
this principle should await acceptance, by the Royal Commission and the Federal Government, 
of the need for federal financial contributions to any medical insurance plan. 

The third essential principle in this resolution suggests that a health services plan should 
be voluntary. Under cross-examination from the commissioners , it was emphasized that there 
are fundamental differences, between a hospital plan for example and a health plan, which 
should be clearly understood. One attends a hospital , as we pointed out , on orders from his 
doctor . There is very little matter of choice . You go to a hospital because really there's no 
way around it. Secondly, a hospital is an institution. It is not a person, whereas for example 
a doctor is a person. You can compel possibly ail institution with a good deal more justifica­
tion than you can a person. In general, the plea was made that compulsion would not create 
facilities; would not provide the necessary personnel; and that the individual citizen should not 
be compelled to do anything unless it can be clearly shown that compulsion itself results in 
the attainment of greater real freedom for all. These then, Mr. Speaker, are the three 
essential principles which Manitoba presented to the Royal Commission on Health Services 
for which the support of the House is solicited in this resolution. 

MR . SHOEMAKER: Mr. Speaker, I beg to move , seconded by the Honourable Member 
for Turtle Mountain, that the debate be adjourned. 

Mr. Speaker presented the motion and after a voice vote declared the motion carried. 
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MR . ROBLIN: Mr. Speaker , I would now ask you to be good enough to call the order of 

business on Page 7 ,  which has to do with the motion standing in the name of the Honourable the 

Attorney-General with respect of the Constitution. 

MR . SPEAKER: The Honourable the Attorney-General. 

MR . LYON: Mr. Speaker, I beg to move , seconded by the Honourable Acting Minister of 

Municipal Affairs ,  that, 

. WHEREAS all self-governing members of the British Commonwealth of Nations except 

Canada have the power to amend their respective Constitutions without reference to the 

Parliament of the United Kingdom ; 

AND WHEREAS for many years successive Governments of Canada and of the several 

Provinces have given consideration to the desirability and the method of amending the Consti­

tuion of Canada without the necessity of petitioning the Parliament of the United Kingdom to 

enact the legislation required; 

AND WHEREAS the Honourable the Minister of Justice for Canada and the Attorneys-Gen­

eral of the Provinces,  at the invitation of the Honourable the Minister of Justice for Canada, 

have since the month of September, 1960, met in conferences from time to time with the object 

of formulating a procedure whereby the amendment of the Constitution of Canada might be 

domiciled in Canada and without recourse to the Parliament of the United Kingdom; 

AND WHEREAS it appeared that there was unanimous agreement on the desirability of 
establishing an amending procedure as .aforesaid, and thereby achieving this important measure 

of national self determination for Canada; , 
AND WHEREAS it w_as found possible to reconcile in part some of the divergencies in views 

of the Provinces and to adopt in principle for presentation and consideration by the several 

Provincial Legislatures a draft of legislation that, if enacted by the United Kingdom Parlia ­

ment, · would achieve the objective desired; 

AND WHEREAS as a result of the deliberations of the Conferences between the Honourable 

the Minister of Justice for Canada and the Honourable the Attorneys-General of the several 

Provinces ,  the draft of an Act to be known as the Constitution of Canada Amendment Act set out 

in Schedule A to this resolution, was prepared, . embodying an amending procedure , and was 

submitted to the several Provinces for their approval ; 

AND WHEREAS in the opinion of this House it is in the public interest and in the interest 

of the citizens of Manitoba that the power to amend the Constitution �f Canada should be 

domiciled in Canada; 
NOW ,  THEREFORE , BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that this House doth approve 

the principle of establishing the right of Canada to amend its Constitution without reference 

to the Parliament of the United Kingdom; 

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the draft of an Act to be known as the Constitu­
tion of Canada Amendment Act set out in Schedule "A" to this Resolution be referred to the 

Standing Committee on Statutory Regulations and Orders for consideration and that the said 

Committee be empowered to sit and hold public hearings on the said draft Act during the pre­

sent Session, and in recess , after prorogation, and to report to this House on its findings and 

recommendation at this session or at the next session of the Legislature ; 

AND THAT the Provincial Treasurer be authorized to pay out of the Consolidated Fund, to 

the members of the said Committee , the amount of expenses incurred by the members in attend­

ing the sittings of the Committee , or expenses incurred by the members in the performance of 

duties ordered by the Committee , in recess, after prorogation, as are deemed necessary by 

the Comptroller-General; 
AND THAT the Provincial Treasurer be authorized to pay out of the Consolidated Fund, 

the expenses of counsel , secretaries,  technical advisers, clerks , and stenographers, to aid 
and assist said Committee in its hearings during the session or after prorogation during re­

cess as are deemed necessary by the Comptroller-General . 

Mr. Speaker presented the motion. 

MR . LYON: Mr . Speaker, this is a resolution which I believe is among one of the most 

important that this House will deal with during the present session. It is a resolution, Sir, 

which I hope will commend itself to all sides of the House , for Sir, it represents the culmina­
tion of a series of conferences ,  begun in September of 1960 among the various Attorneys-General 
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-- {Mr . Lyon, cont'd. ) • • • •  of the several provinces and the federal government , charged 
with the task of domiciling the amending procedure of our Constitution within our own nation . 

I think, Sir , that the general statement can be made that the work of these conferences 
has advanced the achievement of this aim further than ever before in our history. I am not 
going to suggest for a moment, Mr. Speaker, that unanimity has been reached on this very im­
portant question, nor am I going to suggest for a moment that the draft act proposed embodies 
in full measure the principles and ideals or' which this province, through its various adminis­
trations including the present administration, would like to see or would have liked to have seen 
come about in years gone by. But I do suggest, Sir , that it contains and represents a _long for­
ward step _in the resolution of those impasses which-have heretofore hindered the achievement 
of domiciling the amending procedure in Canada. 

I want to make it clear at the outset, Mr. Speaker,  why this resolution is introduced in 
the way in which it is . First of all , I think it is commonly known by all members of the House 
that the Attorneys-General , including myself -- when we attended these various conferences 
were merely acting as agents for our various governments and we were the working committee , 
so to speak -- met to determine whether any agreement was possible in the first instance. I 
think, also, that it was clearly understood that any working paper produced by this group of 
Provincial Ministers , under the chairmanship of the Federal Minister of Justice, represented 
largeley the feelings of the agents they represented and not always necessarily the full view 
or the full concurrence of the governments of the various provinces represented by their agents . 

I think also , Sir , that most members of the House would agree that the Constitution, and 
particularly the · amending procedure, is not a sterile legal problem to be left to governments 
or to lawyers but rather , Sir , that it is the concern of all of the citizens of this country. It is 
something that the very root and branch of our life springs from . Thus I feel, Sir, that the 
best way of reporting Manitoba' s opinion on the draft is to report to the federal government the 
opinion of this House on the draft , after due consideration has been given to the draft by all 
sides of the House represented on the committee; and after that committee has had the oppor­
tunity of hearing from the public, hearing from any other interested bodies outside , and con­
sidering themselves of what the report and the outlook of Manitoba should be on this important 
document. 

I stress , Sir , that it is the desire of the government , and I feel that this would be shared 
by all Parties in the House , to have the fullest participation in discussion of this draft that is 
humanly possible. There may well , S ir ,  be areas of improvement that can be suggested to 
the draft and I can assure all honourable members that certainly the government will listen 
most intently to all members and to the public , in committee , in this regard, so that when we 
finally do report back to the federal government we can report the view of Manitoba, not just 
the review of a government or of a Party, but the review of this House , having considered the 
draft and having had the opportunity of hearing from those members of the public who may wish 
to make representations concerning this draft bill . 

Now, Sir, I think we might usefully spend a few moments on the background, or the history 
of the attempts over the past several years to domicile the amending procedure of our Consti­
tution in Canada. I suppose we might start from this proposition, namely , that practical men 
would say that we have always , or at least in this century, we have been able to amend our own 
Constitution except for the formalities or the machinery that we had to follow . When one 
realizes that it is clear that the United Kingdom Parliament would not act unilaterally in making 
an amendment to the British North America Act ; and when one realizes further that the United 
Kingdom Parliament would act on the joint address of the House of Commons and the Senate on 
this matter; one could say in practical terms that Canada does have this power, notwithstanding 
the legal machinery that is necessary to implement it. Nonetheless , Sir , the hard legal fact 
is, that notwithstanding these practical qualifications that I have mentioned, the hard legal fact 
today is that recourse still must be had to the Parliament of the United Kingdom if we are , in 
fact, to effect an amendment to the British North America Act. In fact, it is rather ironic that 
we just concluded debate on a resolution which expressed the unanimous opinion of this House 
to the effect that the federal government should petition the United Kingdom Parliament with 
respect to a new provision relating to Section 94A of that Act concerned with a social security 
plan. 
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(Mr. Lyon, cont'd.) • • • • •  

If I need call further evidence on this point; I would refer of course to the proceedings of 
the 1950 Conference, which was participated in by the Honourable Member for Lakeside when 
he was the :F'irst Minister of this House , and I would refer to the comments made at that time 
by the then Prime Minister of this House ,  and I would refer to the comments made at that time 
by the then Prime Minister of Canada, the Right Honourable Louis St. Laurent, when he said 
in this connection, quote , on Page 8 : "Canada is today the only nation ii:t the Commonwealth 
lacking full capacity to amend its own Constitution by its own actions , and our country is in­
deed the only soverign state in the world which lacks this power. The development of complete 
nationhood by Canada; the establishment of the constitutional principles confirmed by the 
Statute of Westminster that the United Kingdom and Canada are equal in status and that neither 
country interferes with the affairs of the other, would make it extremely difficult, if not im­
possible ,  for the authorities in London to reject a request for any kind of amendment to the 
BNA Act if that request was in the form of an address from both Houses of the Canadian Par­
liament. The only way in which we Canadians can be sure of avoiding inexcusable embarrass­
me�t of ourselves and of the United Kingdom ,  its parliament and its government, in these 
matters , is by agreeing on a method of amending our own Constitution within Canada which , 
will enable us to discharge our full responsibilities for ourselves .  Until we do this, the legal 
position will continue to be that the only way in which amendments could be made to those 
parts of the Constitution, which are of joint concern to the federal and provincial authorities, 
is by an Act of the United Kingdom Parliament. ,, . 

Now honourable members will realize that I have not up to this point mentioned the amend­
ment which occurred to the British North America Act in 1949, whereby Section 9 1 ,  subsection 
(1) was inserted, giving broad power to the federal parliament to enact amendments in Canada 
to the British North America Act. I think, for the sake of the record and for the benefit of 
those members who have perhaps not had occasion to refer to this section recently, that I 
might read it on to the record for their understanding. This is Section 91 and it _relates in the 
preamble , or in the first part of the section that, "it shall be lawful for the Queen, by and 
with the advice and consent of the Senate and House of Commons , to make laws on various 
subjects . "  Then it goes on to enumerate these subjects, the first of them being this: "The 
amendment .from time to time of the Constitution of Canada except as regards matters coming 
within the classes of subjects by this Act assigned exclusively to the Legislatures of the pro­
vinces ;  or as regards rights or privileges by this or any other constitutional act granted or 
secured to the Legislature or the government of a province ; or to any class of persons with 
respect to schools ;  or as regards the use of English or the French language; or as regards the 
requrements that there shall be a session of the Pa:diament of Canada at least once a year and 
that no House of Commons shall continue for more than five· years from the day of the retuni 
of the writ for choosing the House, provided, however, that a House of Commons may, in time 
of real or apprehended war, invasion or insurrection , be continued by the Parliament of C ana­
da if such continuation is not opposed by the votes of more than one-third of the members of 
such House . "  So that very important provision which has been a part of our Constitution 
since 1949 does,  to the extent that I have mentioned and to the extent that honourable members 
can comprehend from a reading of it, does alter the position insofar as the amendment of the 
Constitution is concerned. But, as Mr. St. Laurent clearly pointed out, and he was speaking 
after this amendment had come into effect, it still leaves the broad area of powers , which are 
either shared between the federal and the provincial governments or which are the sole pre­
rogative of the provincial jurisdictions , it leaves this broad area where recourse must'be had 
to the Parliament of the United Kingdom if an amendment is to be sought . 

I think, Sir , in looking to the background of this matter it might be well to rehearse some 
of the traditional positions which have been taken by the Federal Government, which have been 
taken by some of our sister provinces, which have been taken indeed by this province in con­
sideration of the amending procedure that should be adopted. Remembering always that the 
series of conferences ,  which have produced the present draft act which is before us , repre­
sent, I think the fourth and fifth series dealing with this matter over the past 30 to 40 years , 
and we will get into that in a little more detail in a few moments. 

I refer first of all again to the Constitutional Conference of Federal and Provincial 
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(Mr. Lyon, cont•d.) • • • •  Governments of 1950, and I would refer you to the opening state­
ment again of the Prime Minister of the day, wherein he made this general statement of 
principle with respect to the federal outlook on the amending procedures. Quoting from Page 
10, he said: "To sum up , the Federal Government believes that any satisfactory method of 
amendment must meet three tests . It must protect minority rights absolutely; it must pre ­
serve the federal character of the Canadian Nation by preserving the autonomy within their 
respective spheres of the provincial Legislatures and of Parliament itself; it must have suffi­
cient 

-
flexibility to enable our country, with all its great human and natural resources ,  to 

continue to go forward as a dynamic nation. "  I commend that principle to the members of the 
House and I'm sure that there will be very few who would disagree with the sentiment expressed 
at that time by the former Prime Minister. 

. • . • • . • . • • • Continued on next page . 
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(Mr . Lyon, cont'd . )  • • • •  

I read you now a few comments by the Prime. Minister of Ontario, who at that time was 
the Honourable Leslie Frost, with respect to the outlook of his province on this matter. Quot­
ing now from Page 13 of these proceedings, Mr . Frost said: "Without hesitation I answer the 
question--should we have power in Canada to amend our own .C onstitution--in the affirmative . 
Concerning the second question--if so, by what method--the answer perhaps is not so simple . 
I think again we should bear in mind that we are not here to discuss whether our Constitution 
should be amended, but how it should be amended if at any time we desire to do so.  I shall not 
discuss this matter in detail at this time but it occurs to me that the methods should be : (a) elas­
tic enough to meet the needs of a growing and developing nation; (b) difficult enough to discour­
age indiscriminate tampering with our Constitution; (c) rigid enough to provide ample safe­
guards to protect minorities and fundamentals and the federal system under which we have de­
veloped so satisfactorily during the past 83 years . "  Again, Sir, I commend those principles to 
the members of the Chamber because I feel that most, if not all of us here, would subscribe in 
general to the principles enunciated there by the Prime Minister of Ontario .  

I refer now, if I may, Sir, t o  another provincial statesman who attended that conference, 
the Honourable Member for Lake side, and I quote to you fro:m Page 27 , his words in the ope n­
ing statement by Manitoba at that time: "Let me here restate the position which was taken by 
Manitoba at the conference held in 1935 . It was this: first, the Parliament of the United King­
dom should no longer be retained as the instrument for effecting legislative amendments to the 
British North America Act, 1867; and second, there should be established a procedure by which 
the British North American Act, 1867, may be amended under legislation enacted by the Parlia­
ment of Canada, in which procedure special provision should be made for safeguarding the ex­
isting rights of racial and religious minorities, and legitimate provincial claims to autonomy. "  
Now I realize, Sir, that I do not do justice to the statement of the then Premier of Manitoba by 
quoting only that portion, and I do say that there is very little in that statement with which any 
of us would find fault . It was certainly an effective statement on behalf of this province and one 
with which this present administration would find very little difficulty in agreeing. But I make 
these quotations to you, Sir, in order to point out the similarity and almost unanimity in out­
look of the Federal Government and, say the Province of Manitoba, and the other provinces of 
Canada with. respect to this very important matter . I suggest to you as well, Sir, that there 
has been no change in this consonance of outlook by the various provinces .and by the Federal 
Government in this new series of conferences which we are presently considering. 

If I may be so bold, I will even quote for a moment from a few remarks that I made at 
the opening meeting in September of 1960 to the present series of conferences . Honourable 
members will find the statement in Hansard of last .year, Page 915, I believe it was, where 
this statement was read on to the record at that time in the course of the debate . I said at that 
time: "At the outset may I express Manitoba's appreciation of the initiative taken by the Federal 
Government in calling together the Attorneys-General of all provinces to this conference . To 
say that we enthusiastically welcome the opportunity of discussing and, we hope, achieving the 
aim of domiciling the Canadian Constitution in Canada is an understatement . The time for this 
step we consider to be long overdue . Ten years have now elapsed since the last Federal-Prov­
incial Constitutional Conference, in which time areas of disagreement which then prevented 
realization of this goal, has surely been diminished. We are, therefore, optimistic that we can 
achieve this measure of national self-determination which the people of Canada most surely 
will welcome, and which the times demand. " Continuing on: "At the meeting in January of 1950, 
the position taken by Manitoba was the same as that taken at the 1935 meeting, namely, that; 
first, the Parliament of the United Kingdom should no longer be retained as the instrument for 
effecting legislative amendments to the British North America Act, 1867; and secondly, there 
should be established a procedure by which the British North America Act, 1867 may be amend­
ed under legislation enacted by the Parliament of Canada, in which procedure special provision 
should be made for safeguarding the existing rights of racial and religious minorities and legit­
imate provincial claims to autonomy . "  I quote, Sir, and this is my own statement: "The Govern­
ment of Manitoba still subscribes wholeheartedly to these principles . "  So I think honourable 
members can see that there has been this thread running through the submissions made by the 
various administrations on behalf of Manitoba going back to 1935, which was reiterated again in 
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(Mr . Lyon, cont'd . )  • • • •  1950 by the Hono�able Member for Lakeside as the head of the Mani­
toba Delegation, and then again in 1960 reiterated again by myself on behalf of Manitoba at this 
conference . 

MR . D. L. CAMPBELL (Lakeside) : Mr. Speaker, I wonder if the Honourable the Attor­
ney-General would permit a question at this stage . 

MR . LYON: Yes .  
MR . CAMPBELL: I notice that he mentioned and quoted from the proceedings that he 

identified as the year 1950 . My recollection is, and I have not taken the opportunity to check 
on this , that there were two constitutional conferences in 1950 . If that is correct, which one 
did the Ho;nourable the Attorney-General quote from ? 

MR . LYON: I am quoting from the Proceedings of the Constitutional Conference of Fed­
eral and Provincial Governments held at Ottawa, January lOth to 12th, 1950 . I believe there 
was a subsequent meeting in the Province of Quebec at Quebec City in September of that year, 
or approximately that month. 

Now, Mr .  Speaker, I think all members of the House will realize that to achieve the ends 
that the Federal Government has expressed from time to time, and that this province has ex­
pressed and the various other provinces have expressed, each province ,  or regional grouping 
or population grouping or whatever, cannot insist on imposing its will on some other part of 
the country. In fact, in these discussions I think there was projected, in the clearest terms, 
the essence of our Canadian democracy; and the essence of that, Sir, I would suggest, is that 
compromise is necessary to accommodate the varying views that one gets from province to 
province; from region to region; and among the various racial groups which make up this coun­
try of ours.  I say, Sir, that the spirit and will of all of our people to achieve this common aim 
was never better manifested t!Um it was at the conferences that I had the privilege to attend. 
It was equally evident that there was a great necessity to avoid any parochial or regional or 
party outlook and to subvert, if you will, the commonplace attitudes and rise to the challenge 
of this national requirement .  I suggest, Sir, · by compromise we were able to reach some 
decisions which certainly manifest themselves in this draft which we have before us today. 

· 
One doesn't like to philosophize about one 's country too often, but I do suggest to you, 

Sir, that this nation was not built and certainly will not continue to be built or progress in the 
future without disagreements, and serious disagreements among the various provinces and 
among the different regional groupings which m ake  up this country. I suggest as well, Sir, 
that the hearth of disagreement in Canada has forged and tempered pretty proud steel, and 
steel that is used to brace this nation very firmly on the foundation that we have today . So I do not 
feel that we should be afraid to express disagreements that we may have . We should not be 
afraid to come forward and say: "Well now why would Quebec want this; why would Ontario want 
that; why would British Columbia insist on this? Because this is exactly what we did in the ser­
ies of conferences that took place . As a result of all of these ideas being tossed back and forth 
across the conference table in a spirit of goodwill, we were able to arrive at the draft that you 
have before you today . I can report, Sir, that the attitude that I have just spoken about, the 
attitude of compromise; the attitude of respect for others opinions; the attitude of realizing 
that one could not impress one 's will upon another section or another group; prevailed at all 
times, may I say, am ong all provinces, and I am happy to be able to report that fact to this 
House . That does not mean to say that there are not still some areas of disagreement, but I 
do say, Sir, that it represented a wonderful exercise in democracy in Canada to see the various 
provinces getting together on a measure such as this and being able to arrive, at least at one 
stage , of agreement on a very important matter. · 

Now chronologically I started out to say what has happened with respect to domiciling the 
amending procedure in Canada . I think a very brief summary would indicate the following fact. 
Going back to Confederation, the debates contain only one m ention of amendments to the British 
North Am erica Act and, on that occasion, the Speaker said only that this would be a matter for 
the United Kingdom Parliament, so we can well understand that the Fathers of Confederation 
and those who followed closely on their heels were not too much concerned at that time about 
this province . While the British North America Act certainly can be considered a fundamental 
law for Canada, it was, so far as the British Parliament was concerned, simply a statute on 
the same basis as all other statutes, to be changed by the ordinary means of passing another 
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(Mr. Lyon, cont'd. )  • • • •  law. No special procedure was contemplated or required in 1867 . 
Some conventions concerning the matter of changes in the BNA Act, however, soon did develop . 
The British Parliament did not pass amendments without a request of an appropriate Canadian 
authority. Over the years, the proper form for making these requests became that of a joint 
address of the Senate and the House of Commons, which was sent to Britian together with a 
draft of the amendment to be passed. Since 1867, there have been 12 amendments that have 
made substantial changes in the British North America Act, so one can see that recourse has 
not been had too often to this procedure, only 12 substantial ones having been m ade . I think 
there were some lesser ones that were m ade from time to time that had no subsequent effect 
upon the Constitution . 

There was little discussion in the earlier days, especially in the pre-1900 era, either in 
press or in Parliament on the question of finding a more satisfactory method of amending the 
Constitution. The question came to the fore, one could suggest, with the rapid growth in Can­
adian autonomy after the 1914-18 Great War, with many arguing that appeals to the British 
Parliament were not consistent with approaching Canadian nationhood . The first officiai action 
was in 1920 when the government of the day raised the. question with the Attorneys-General of 
the various provinces .  The diversity of views was such that no further action was taken at that 
time . . A second attempt to find a method of amending the Act in Canada came soon after the 
Balfour Report of 1926. 

In November of 1927, when representatives of the provinces and the federal government 
met in Ottawa, one item on the agenda was "Procedure for Amending the British North America 
Act . "  The Honourable Ernest LaPointe, the Minister of Justice, suggested to the conference 
that a possible formula might divide the provisions of the Act into two parts . First, ordinary 
provisions for which a consent of the m ajority of the provinces would be required, and funda­
mental provisions for which unanimous consent would be required .  The conference foundered 
on the question of what provisions were fundamental or, as we call it now, "entrenched" and 
broke up in failure . Since agreement on how the Constitution was to be amended could not be 
achieved, it was necessary to put the following section in the Statute of Westminster in 1931 : 
"Nothing in this Act shall be deemed to apply to. the repeal, amendment or alteration of the 
British North America Act, 1867 to 1930, or any order, rule or regulations m ade thereunder. "  
That is Section 7 Subsection (1) of that Statute. 

In 1935 a .concerted effort, begun by the Conservative administration and continued by the 
Liberal Government, was made to find a satisfactory amending formula. In February of that 
year a Committee of the House of Commons was set up to consider the problem and, after 11 
meetings and much expert testimony, it adjourned without making a recommendation. On the 
following December, a Federal-Provincial Conference was· called and a subcommittee of the 
conference was struck to re,...examine the whole issue .- The result was the convening of a further 
conference of experts representing the provincial and federal governments . Eventually, a spec­
ific amending formula was \\0 rked out, and while it appeared to have a large measure of sup­
port, it foundered primarily because of objections from the Maritime provinces . 

No further official attempts to find a formula took place until 1949 . Two significant 
events occurred in that year . The first one I have already mentioned, namely, the amendment 
that was obtained, Section 91 (1) of the British North America Act, permitting the federal gov­
ernment to amend the Constitution in Canada in those particularly federal spheres which I have 
read from the Act itself. 

Now after the passage of this amendment, the federal government called a Dominion-Pro­
vincial Conference, the one to which reference has been made and from the proceedings of which 
quotations have been given, for the specific purpose of finding a formula by which the rest of 
the Act, that is its non-federal aspects, might be amended . There was unanimous agreement 
that the most profitable approach would be to divide the British North America Act into six 
categories,  each of which would have an appropriate m ethod of amendment . Firstly, provisions 
which concern Parliament only--and the suggestion was by an Act of Parliament itself. Second­
ly, provisions which concern Provincial Legislatures only, by an Act of the Provincial Legisla­
tures themselves .  Thirdly, provisions -which concern Parliament and one or more, but not all 
provincial Legislatures, by Act of the Dominion Parliament and each of the Legislatures affect­
ed . Fourthly, provisions whi�h concern Parliamentand all the Provincial Legislatures, by Act 
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(Mr . Lyon, cont'd.) • • • .  of Parliament and the majority of the provinces, which majority is to 
.be decided upon . Fifthly, provisions which concern fundamental rights such as education, lang­
uage, administrat�on of justice, solemnization of marriage, provincial property and lands, and 
the amending of the amending procedure, the amending of the amending procedure by Act of 
Parliament and all the Provincial Legislatures; in other words by entrenchment. And finally, 
the last provision, provisions of the Act which should be repealed. 

Now without detailing any further the background of the matter, it's sufficient to say that 
further conferences were held. The Committee of Attorneys -General was struck from that 
plenary conference of the First Ministers of each of the provinces, and after a most intensive 
consideration, the committee reported to the reconvened conference that it had been unable to 
achieve agreement on some 46-odd sections . So we can see that there have been four attempts , 
not including the present one which would be the fifth, and I don't like to classify the present one 
as an attempt at this early stage, you will see that there have been four attempts since 1920 to 
find a satisfactory amending formula and, unfortunately, all of them up to the present time 
have failed. 

Now, Mr .  Speaker ,  I suggest that we might usefully come to the draft act itself, result­
ing from the m ost recent series of conference . It is not going to be my attempt to reconstruct 
this act and to say that this province came from Quebec and that provision came from Alberta 
and here's the change that Manitoba suggested or anything like that at all. I think the best 
thing to do is to take the draft, go over it, and make some very general comments upon it in 
order that there might be a better understanding of just what was arrived at. 

Mr. Speaker, if honourable members have a copy of the schedule to the resolution in 
front of them , if they refer to �t, I would make the following few comments with respect to it. 
The first section, I believe, is'self-explanatory . It merely says that subject to this part, Par­
liament of Canada may m ake laws repealing, amending, or re-enacting any provision of the 
Constitution of Canada. That's pretty basic and I think is understood by everybody. This is 
the transference of power, so to speak, to amend this statute within Canada . 

The next section might loosely be called the "Entrenchment Section, " and if read with · 
Section 4, · these two might be called the two entrenchment sections of the proposed Draft 
Amendment Act in Part I. I would make only this comment in reading the first part of Section 
2: "No law made under the authority of this part"--and that refers to Part I. Part I ,  you will 
note, is not an amendment to the BNA Act . It's a separate act. Part ll is an amendment to the 
British North America Act, but it says : "No law made under the authority of this part, affect­
ing any provision of this act"--that is referring to the amendment act itself--so that is the first 
thing that is entrenched. Or Section 51 (a) of the British North America Act, that is the second 
thing that is entrenched, and that refers to no province having fewer members of Parliament 
in the House of Commons than it has senators or affecting any provision of the Constitution of 
Canada relating to (a) , (b) ,  (c) and (d) . These are the traditional powers of the Legislatures ,  

"the divisional provincial jurisdictional sections which are totally entrenched by this section .  I 
want honourable members to recall that because I don't want them to fly .back in awe of this 
statement, because we must realize that we come on the second section which deals with dele-· 
gations and which, to some extent, ameliorates the effect of this entrenchment that we see in 
Section 2 .  You can see that those things that are ·entrenched are the powers of the Legislature 
of a province to make laws . 

Now this I suggest, Mr . Speaker, is qualified by Section 3 and by the delegation clause 
which we will come to a little later on. It entrenches the rights or privileges granted or secur­
ed by the . Constitution of Canada to the Legislature or the governments of the province .  Now 
that is a broader way ·and, as a lawyer would say, it's just to make certainly more sure, that 
they put in this second section . (c) the assets or property of a province--that refers to such 
things as natural resources,  etcetera; and (4) the use of the English or French language--that 
is one of the basic rights which all agree at all times should be entrenched and that of course is 
included. 

Section 3 of the act, I believe again is pretty well self-explanatory. It merely states that 
any provision of the Constitution of Canada referring to one or more, but not all of the prov­
inces, may be amended if it is concurred in by the I...Eigislature of every province to which the 
provision refer s .  
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(Mr. Lyon, cont'd .)  • • • •  

Now Section 4 deals with the question of education: "No law made under the authority of 
this part affecting any provision of the Constitution of Canada relating to education in any prov­
ince,  other than Newfoundland, shall come to force unless it is concurred in by the Legislature 
of all the provinces other than Newfoundland. "  I may say, Sir, that there was a special reserva­
tion made by Newfoundland because of the way in which they were brought into C onfederation 
with respect to the education clause, that they asked for this exception from the' general clause 
entrenchment. 

Dealing now with section 5, this again, while largely self-explanatory says--this is what 
you might call the general power of amendment that is contained in the draft act--"No law made 
under the authority of this part affecting any provision of the Constitution of Canada, not com­
ing within (2), (3) or (4) , shall come into force unless it is concurred in by the Legislatures of 
at least two-thirds of the provinces, representing at least 50 percent of the population of Cana­
da according to the latest general census . "  

Now you see immediately, Mr . Speaker, the three methods of amendment that are set 
forth. First of all, you have the entrenched clauses;  then you must seek unanimous approval 
from all provinces in order to amend any of those sections . Then you have the second group­
ing, laws which do not affect all of the provinces.  These provisions may be amended by con­
sent of the provinces affected and with concurrence of the federal government . The third group­
ing lies in between those two categories and, as well, Sir, between them at one end and Section 
91 (1) at the other end. It's not such a broad area that is left to be covered by this two-thirds 
concurrence representing 50 percent of the population, as might have been the case had this 
act been drawn some 15 years ago. But reference having already been made to Section 91 (1) 
of the British North America Act and the effect there to permit Parliament to amend with res­
pect to federal matters, one can see that this area left to be determined by two-thirds of the 
provinces and 50 percent of the population is not as broad as it might otherwise be . 

Section 6 ,  I suggest, preserves the Dominion and provincial jurisdictions--the tradition­
al jurisdictions which they have had, and also, Sir, if not directly, certainly by implication. 
In the present draft, it preserves the effect of Section 91, subsection (1) which was put into the 
Constitution in 1949 . 

Section 7 is what might be referred to technically as the sign-off section. This is the 
section which rem oves irrevocably from the United Kingdom Parliament their right ever to 
effect any amendments to the British North America Act. There's always been some discuss­
ion as to whether or not this is even necessary, because the United Kingdom Parliament will 
have to enact the amending act itself. Of course this will always remain a Statute of the United 
Kingdom Parliament and so there is perhaps a doubtful value, although probably a good psycho­
logical value in having this Section 7 in the act . In any case, it !s there and I see no great ob-
jection to leaving it there . 

· 

Section 8 is merely the definition section which defines what the Constitution of Canada 
is • .  I am sure honourable members will appreciate that the Constitution of Canada certainly is 
much more than just the British North America Act. There's a list of the other enactments 
set forth there as well. By the Constitution we refer to the customs ,  usages and traditions 
that we have built up and the commonlaw--the judicial decisions that have built up around the 
Constitution, all of which become a part of the written or .unwritten Constitution of this country . 

We come now to Part n of the act and, as I mentioned before, Sir, Part n purports to be 
an amendment to the present British North America Act, 1867, and Part n deals with delega­
tion . You will remember, Sir, that when we were dealing with the entrenchment sections I 
mentioned that their effect would be ameliorated by the existence in the act of a delegation pro­
vision, and this is the important provision that we have appearing in Part 11. I can quote from 
the late Honourable Angus L. McDonald, the Prime Minister--or Premier of Nova Scotia, 
speaking at the same conference in January of 1950 as to his ideas on delegation . He had a 
very simple explanation of delegation that I don't think I could improve upon, and I give you his 
words from Page 21 of that report. "I shall now take up the last section of the submission 
which I call delegation of legislative powers . Though the conference is primarily concerned 
with the establishment of a permanent method for the formal amendment of the Constitution, 
the province recommends that the conference consider the desirability of a provision enabling 
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(Mr. Lyon, cont'd.) • . • • •  temporary and partial amendments by way of authorized delegation 
. of existing legislative powers by the Dominion to one or more of the provinces and vice versa . "  

Now that explains delegation in a few words, Mr .  Speaker . Delegation is. merely that 
procedure, which by the way at the present time is not lawful under the Constitution of Canada, 
whereby the federal jurisdiction might transfer certain areas of its responsibility under the 
British North America Act to one or more provinces, or vice versa, the provinces-might trans­
fer certain areas of their jurisdiction to the federal government. As an example, I suppose if 
this act were now in force and the power in the provinces were enabled to delegate to the feder­
al government and the federal government back, the problem that we have with respect to the 
orderly payment of debts might be resolved by delegation, because the federal government 
might say: "It is true we have the authority for bankruptcy proceedings under Section 91, but 
you haye a system that has been working well in the provincial field so we will delegate our 
authority under 91 (1) to you so that you can enact a provincial act in this field and thereby 
make it a constitutional piece of legislation. "  Now that is a very simple example of how dele­
gation might work. 

MR . HILLHOUSE: • . • • • •  divorce laws . 
MR . LYON: I think it would apply of course to the whole field except as circumscribed 

by the delegation clause itself, and we're just coming to that. The first subsection (1) and 
subsection (2) deals with delegation by the provinces to the federal government, and I have giv­
en an example perhaps of a delegation back from the federal government to the provinces which 
would apply in (3) and (4) . A delegation by the provinces to the federal government might con­
ceivably be, for instance, in the field of prisons and reformatories . There might be an arrange­
ment, for instance , between the federal government and the Maritime Provinces whereby the 
provinces would undertake to give the federal government authority to incarcerate in federal in­
stitutions all provincial prisoners . Well this could be done by delegation by the provinces, giv­
ing up an area of juris diction which they have under the act but giving it up voluntarily to the 
federal government. Now I don't think there are any detailed comments I wish to make with 
regard to--any further detailed comments with respect to delegation except to say that the pro­
cedures set forth here are largely reciprocal. The provinces may delegate to the federal; the 
federal may delegate back to the provinces . 

Getting into the machinery of how it is done, you can see that in subsection (2) at least 
four of the provinces, in the case of a delegation to the federal government at least four prov­
inces must consent to the operation of such a statute as provided; or, if it is declared by the 
Parliament of Canada that the enactment of the statute is of concern to less than four of the 
provinces, the provinces so declared by the Parliament of Canada to be concerned have, under 
the authority of their Legislatures, consented to the enactment of such a statute . --(interjection) 
--That is 2 (b) or 94 {a) . This merely means, for instance, that if under the delegation prov­
ision that the provinces of Saskatchewan, Manitoba and Alberta wished to delegate certain auth­
ority with respect to a common problem, say with respect to marketing, to the federal govern­
ment, they might do this . Now under (a), if that were a hard and fast rule , .  there must be four 
provinces consenting to it . It would mean that B. C .  or Ontario would have to consent to an act 
that had no relation to them at all, and so (b) was put in enabling the federal government to de­
clare or to designate those provinces, if there were less than four who were affeCted, in order 
that they may effect the delegation in that easier manner . Now the delegation in (3) and (4) by 
the federal parliament back to the provinces is similar in concept to that contained in subsec­
tions (1) and (2) . You will note, however, that in the machinery provided in subsection (4), 
that if the federal government wishes to delegate; prior to the enactment, the Parliament of 
Canada must consent to the enactment by the Legislature of the province and a similar statute 
must, under the authority of subsection .{3), be enacted by the Legislatures of at least three 
other provinces . Now there is not a balance in these procedures .  We fought for a balance in 
the procedures and we couldn't get agreement on that point at all. There was a concern by some 
of the parties at the conference that the Constitution might become a patchwork if the federal 
government could delegate to one province or, in turn, one province could delegate to the feder­
al government. Our argument and our position, and I commend it to the House for considera­
tion, was this: that there should be the greatest flexibility as possible in delegation, and that 
one province shQuld be able to delegate in the broad field, not on a restricted field at all but in 
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(Mr . Lyon, cont'd . )  • . • •  a broad field to the federal government and vice versa. Our further 
feeling was that the Constitution could not become a patchwork because the federal government 
would always have the final veto to say whether or not either it would delegate or it would re­
ceive back a delegated power. 

Now in dealing with this , Mr. Speaker, I did not mention at the beginning in 94 (a) that 
delegation, as you can see, is restricted to head: (6) , (10), (13) and (16) of Section 92 of the 
British North America Act . I do not have to say to the House, Sir, that the position of Manito­
ba was that all of Section 92 should be capable of delegation. This again, I suggest, is the com­
promise that was arrived at after long discussion, long debate on this matter, and while this is 
perhaps the perfect example of an area in which our ideals and our hopes were not reached, it 
represents the only compromise that was able to be reached at the conference . I still feel, and 
I'm sure most members of the House would feel, that the method of amendment should be flex­
ible ; that the delegation powers should be broad and flexible, because the first portion of the 
act contemplates, the total entrenchment of all provincial powers under 92.  We felt, conversely, 
there should be a total power of delegation under 92, but this was not possible in the. draft as it 
appeared . 

Now I don •t believe that there is anything further, Sir, I wish to say with respect to the 
Act it�e1f. I think we can give it more detailed consideration when we get into Committee and 
run over. some of the procedures, or m achinery that is contemplated £or the operation of the 
St11tute if it is agreed upon. 

I reiterate again, Mr .  Speaker, in closing, that this act certainly may not be perfect in 
the .sense that it represents all that Manitoba has striven for over the years,, through the four 
and now the fifth series of conferences on this matter, but it does represent a consensus of the 
deliberations to date, and it does, I reiterate this again, represent the highest plateau of agree­
ment that has ever been reached in a series of these conferences over the past 20 to 30 years . 
Each of the provinces of Canada is presently considering this draft which is before the House 
today. Some of the Legislatures are considering the draft just as we are doing. We commend 
this draft to the House, Mr. Speaker, for consideration, for debate, for review, and, if need 
be, for amendment of certain of the provisions _if that is felt absolutely necessary. I hope and 
trust, Sir, that in the consideration which the House will give to this m atter, it will keep clear­
ly defined, and before it, the ideal of achieving agreement on this most important step in ad­
vancing the 'true and unfettered nationhood of our country . 

MR . CAMPBELL: Mr . Speaker, would the Honourable the Attorney-General be willing 
to answer a couple of questions at this stage ? I don't want at all to get him to break any of the 
confidences that sometimes do pertain at these conferences by asking him about iil.dividual pro­
vincial stands on these m atters ,  and to some extent he's already answered the one question be­
cause he has indicated that Manitoba would have liked to have gone further than this draft en­
visages with regard to delegation . Apart from that compromise, was there quite general agree­
ment on these sections, for instance was there quite general agreement that there could be 
delegation.as far as (6) ,  (10), . (13) and (16)? Is that complete agreement? On the basis ofthe 
area of agreement up to date, does the Attorney-General think that there is a good likelihood 
of something very close to this being agreed to by all the provinces now? 

MR . LYON: Mr. Speaker, in answering the questions of the Honourable Member for 
Lakeside , I should say, first of all, that I have attempted not to· comment upon positions of pro­
vinces ,  other than Manitoba, because I can't interpret the position of Prince Edward Island or 
British Columbia--only they can. And I think--

MR . RUSSELL PAULLEY (Leader of the NDP)(Radisson) : Mr .  Speaker, might I ask my 
honourable friend a question just relating to this ? Is the gentleman's agreement of not talking 
about the attitude of the other Attorneys-General still in effect? That was in effect, as I under­
stood it, before . Is it still so? 

MR . LYON: Well, it's not a gentleman's agreement. I think it's just common sense, 
Mr . Speaker . Whether there is any agreement or not, I wouldn't attempt to try to paint a pic­
ture of another jurisdiction because my viewpoint m ay be entirely wrong . I think such a picture 
should be painted out of their mouths and out of their mouths alone . I did feel free to comment, 
and I think I should feel quite free to comment with respect to any position that Manitoba has 
taken, both in the past and during this present series of conferences . 
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(Mr . Lyon, cont'd.) • • • •  

As to whether or not there is tight unanimity and agreement on this ,  I'm afraid I must an-
- swer in the negative because there are reservations with respect to certain sections, and res­

ervations with respect to others . For instance, in the case of Manitoba, I was able to say that 
if this is the compromise, the only compromise, or the best compromise that we can arrive at, 
I will take it back to the government, or to the legislature, and ask for their consideration. And 
so I think that each delegation was subject to the same restriction, that this was the best that we 
could do at that point; we were going to take it back to our respective governments, or legisla­
tures, for their consideration and report back. I think it would be fairly sangnine to say that 
there wil� be early agreement on this because I can still see some areas of concern. There 
are some jurisdictions who are quite concerned about 91 (1) of the British North America Act 
as it presently exists . Some jurisdictions m ay well want consideration by the federal govern­
ment to be given to that section, the existing section, before they will make any commitment 
with respect to the present draft. So I think that while I am optimistic personally, that from 
this draft, or some variation of it, we will reach the ultimate one that we hope to embed in our 
Constitution . Still I wouldn't want to put any time limit on it. ! _think that still further negotia­
tion and agreement, and perhaps amendment of this draft amendment act, will be necessary .  

MR . CAMPBE LL: Mr . Speaker, again I am intending to ask a question rather than make 
a statement. But I might premise it by saying that I agree with the Attorney-General complete­
ly in that be should not, I think, attempt to express the views of other provinces because they're 
quite difficult to interpret and I wouldn't think that would be advisable . 

With regard to Section 5, on Page 2, last half of it, reading: "Unless it is concurred in 
by the legislatures of at least two-thirds of the provinces, representing at least 50% of the popu­
lation, " etcetera. Might I ask: the Attorney-General, is that 50% pretty generally agreed to in 
his opinion? It's evident that one of the big central provinces is necessary to achieve that 50%, 
but would his opinion be that it's likely that there would be pretty general agreement with it be­
ing as low as 50 percent? 

MR . LYON: It's pretty hard, pretty difficult, Mr .  Speaker, to answer that question cate­
gorically . I would say this , that there is as., much general agreement with respect to that sec­
tion as there is to any other section of the Draft Amendment Act. So to that extent, there is 
general agreement. 

MR. J. M. HAWRYLUK (Burrows) : Mr . Speaker, during the discussion that took place, 
that we're all aware that at the time the BNA Act was passed in 1867 there were certain safe­
guards that were given to some of the provinces that were in effect before 1867 regarding the 
educational status in the various provinces, by law, and by practice, and so forth, and by 
gentleman's agreement, in the Maritime Provinces . Now there has been indications in various 
conferences that have been held, the educational conferences held in various parts of Canada, 
that there has been some talk of having m ore uniformity as far as the educational standards are 
concerned across Canada. Now has there been any discussion in which--will there be any lati­
tude regarding the Act of 1867 which gave protection to the provinces regarding the Educational 
Act, as to the possibility of something in the idea of a national-wide Canadian educational set 
up? Or else, are the safeguards still in the new Act, as far as protecting the province is con­
cerned? This has to do with the separate schools, and private schools, and so forth, in the 
various provinces across Canada . 

MR . SPEAKER: Are there any other questions ? 
MR . HILLHOUSE :  Yes, Mr . Speaker. From reading newspaper accounts of this confer­

ence I have the impression that before Canada will submit this Act to the Parliament of the Unit­
ed Kingdom that a majority of the provinces, plus a m ajority of the population, must give their 
prior consent. Is that right? 

MR . SPEAKER: Are you ready for the question? 
MR. CAMPBELL: Mr. Speaker, if it's not in order for the Honourable the Attorney­

General to answer the questions at this time , I propose to move the adjournment of the debate . 
So I would like it to be taken that these are answers to questions--if he prefers to answer. 

MR .  LYON: . . • . • .  by me, Mr . Speaker. I would merely say I am not sure what my hon­
ourable friend is getting at--the Honourable Member for Burrows--on the question of education . 
I think if he looks at the draft itself, in Section 4, be will find that it's entrenched, subject, 
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(Mr . Lyon, cont'd . )  • • • •  except With respect to the Province of Newfoundland. 
With respect to the question asked by the Honourable Member for Selkirk as to what pro­

portion, I think it's the desire, naturally, to get unanimous agreement. I don't think there's 
been really any discussion as to the hypothetical situation that might arise if one, two, or more 
provinces disagreed . So I really couldn't answer it one way or the other . 

MR. CAMPBELL: Mr . Speaker, I move, seconded by the Honourable Member for Ethel­
bert Plains, that the debate be adjourned . 

Mr . Speaker presented the motion and after a voice vote declared the m otion carried • 

• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • . • • • • . Continued on next page . 
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MR. ROBLIN: Mr. Speaker, if I may I would now Uke to move the Committee of Supply. 
I move, seconded by the Honourable the Minister of Mines and Natural Resources, that Mr. 
Speaker do now leave the Chair and the House resolve itself into a Committee to consider of 
the Supply to be granted to Her Majesty. 

Mr. Speaker put the question and after a voice vote declared the motion carried, and the 
House resolved itself into a Committee to consider of the Supply to be granted to Her Majesty, 
with the Honourable Member for St. Matthews in the Chair. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: 6. Surveys Branch . . . . .  adopted? 
MR. CAMPBELL: Are we finished with No. 5, Mr. Chairman? 
MR , CHAIRMAN: Yes we completed 5. Going on to 6, passed. 7 passed? 
MR. HAWRYLUK: I never did get the information I sought last week regarding the com­

pensation, etcetera, of the injured or anybody that was killed at the time of the fire. 
HON. C. H. WITNEY (Minister of Mines and Natural Resources) (Flin Flon) : Mr. Chair­

man, we had no volunteers, as such, fighting fires this year . All who volunteered were put on 
the payroll and on the payroll they were covered by compensation. In some cases they were 
groups of people where we assisted them but in those cases those people were not on compensa­
tion -- (Interjection) -- Beg your pardon? The Honourable the Minister of Industry and Com­
merce was going to answer that question and it was, I believe , taken care of through the Civil 
Service . 

MR. MOLGAT: Mr. Chairman, had we passed Item 5 the o�her day? 
MR . CHAIRMAN: Yes, ·5 was passed. 
MR. MOLGAT: My notes were that we had just finished 4. 
MR. CHAIRMAN: No , we passed 5 and we called 6 .  
MR. MOLGAT: Mr. Chairman, I think the other day I had asked the Minister for some 

specific information about the catch limits on some lakes . I wonder if he has that now. 
MR. WITNEY: The catch limit on God's Lake was increased by -- it wasn't increased 

by 200, 000; we transferred to the winter limit 200, 000 that had not been caught on the summer 
limit, so the over-all production remained the same. On the Reindeer Lake we did the same; 
we transferred the uncaught portion of the summer limit which was roughly about 125, 000 pounds 
to the winter limit, and on South Indian Lake we had in the summer a lOO, 000 pound season for 
pickerel in the north end of South Indian Lake . 

MR. MOLGAT: Mr. Chairman, what does that make the -- has the Minister got the total 
limit? 

MR. WITNEY: Yes, the total limit on God's Lake is 600 , 000 pounds, on Reindeer Lake , 
600, 000, and on South Indian, 900 , 000 . 

MR. MOLGAT: . . .  , . . . . . .  this with last year's total? 
MR. WITNEY: Last year in South Indian it was 800, 000; Reindeer, 500, 000 and God's 

Lake , 600, 000 . 
MR. MOLGAT: . . . . . . . . . .  increase of 100, 000 on two of them ? 
MR . WITNEY: That is right. 
MR. SHOEMAKER: Mr. Chairman, we 're on 6, are we not? Is this the department that 

would take care of the roadside parks and campsites and access roads to recreation areas ? 
MR. WITNEY : No, that was back in the Forestry Branch, Mr. Chairman. 
MR. SHOEMAKER: Well, Mr. Chairman, in the annual report that I have before me it 

covers -- (Interjection) -- no, this is the annual report, 196 1, Surveys Branch -- oh, that's 
Field Services, pardon me. Is that right? Is that what the Minister said? That would come 
under Field Services ?  

MR. WITNEY: Forestry in the number 2,  Mr .  Chairman. 
MR. SHOEMAKER: Well then if that's not so in this report that I have before me, well 

anyway, Mr. Chairman, when I'm up on my feet, would the Honourable Minister tell me under 
the last one -- under Item No. 10 -- when we come to that, could we discuss that there ? I was 
going to ask him in particular about Grand Beach, what developments have taken place there . 
I suppose that since there would be a large expenditure that Grand Beach "\\Uuld come under 10. 

MR. WITNEY: We can discuss it under 10, Mr. Chairman. 
MR. MOLGAT: Mr. Chairman, I think the point of my honourable friend though is well 

taken because when you take the report of the department, Surveys Branch starts on page 124 
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(Mr. Molgat, cont'd. )  _ .  • • • . and under that heading there is certainly summer resorts Md pub­
lic campsites on page 127. Is that not --

MR. WITNEY: These are the surveying of those -- . the surveying of the campsites and 
the recreational areas are done by the Surveys Branch ---

MR. MOLGAT: Mr. Chairman, on the surveys then. What surveys are presently being 
undertaken insofar as the boundaries ?  Are we all complete now on the Manitoba,-Saskatchewan 
and the Northwest Territories and the Ontario ? 

MR. WITNEY: The survey on the Ontario boundary was done some years ago. Last year 
the survey on the Northwest Territories boundary was complete and there is roughly 113 miles 
approximately to go on the Manitoba-Saskatchewan boundary and it's anticipated that that will be 
finished in 1962. 

MR. MOLGAT: By that time we will have had a complete survey of all the boundaries of 
the Province of Manitoba. 

MR. WITNEY: We should have , yes, by that .time. 
MR. CHAIRMAN: . . . . . . .  passed, 57, · Mines Branch. 
MR. MOLGAT: Mr. Chairman, I don't care where this comes up, but I understood and I 

made a note in the early part of Mine estimates that the Minister was to speak to us on the 
Grand Rapids archaeological works. I had asked about this from the Minister of Industry and 
Commerce who said to me that this would be done by the Minister of Mines and Resources . 
When will we be getting this ? 

MR. WITNEY: I. think an appropriate time would be on number 10, Mr. Chairman. 
MR. CHAIRMAN: . . . . • • . • .  passed. 

. 

MR. D. ORLIKOW (St. John's): No , no, Mr. Chairman, we had some discussion some 
days ago, a week or more ago, about the mine accident at Thompson, and I think th� First 
Minister gave his assurances that we would have a pretty complete report from the Minister on 
what happened there and what steps will be taken if any are required to ensure that possibly we 
won't have other recurrences and so on. I think this is the place when we ought tg have a pretty 
detailed statement on just that question. 

MR. WITNEY: Mr . Chairman, I think possibly I should read here in order that I don't 
make any errors, because there are some technicalities here that it wouldn't be wise to make 
any mistakes on. The accident at Thompson took place at 7 : 00 p. m .  on September 6th, 1961 
and the mining officials notified our safety inspector on the same evening, roughly about 9 : 00 
o'clock. He was on the plane, the first transportation he could get the next morning into Thomp­
son to investigate the situation immediately. The accident took place on 63 stope. It's a longi­
tudinal cut and filled stope 205 feet long, and it had been mined one cut above sill elevation with 
the second cut mined from the south half where the

. 
accident occurred. The men involved were 

in the process of removing pipes ,  timber and other materials . They were coming from the 
north half to the south half in preparation for mining the north half. Mining of the south end 
was completed, the last blast 'being on August 30th. Most of the broken ore had been removed · 
and for the last few shifts the <:rews had been engaged in cleaning up. Both the north and south 
halves of the stope had been rock-bolted on the roof and hanging walls with 6 foot and 8 foot 
3/4 inch high-strength headed bolts with expansion shelves according to standard practice at 
the mine. In the south half where the accident occurred there were some 115 roof bolts and 74 -
wall bolts installed. 

On August 28th it was noticed that a hairline crack had developed and a timber cribbed 
bulkhead was installed on the following day. The stope had been checked by the shift bosses 
and the crews on each shift prior to the accident. The stope was checked by the divisional mine 
foreman and a shift boss on the morning of the accident. The general mine foreman was in the 
s tope during the previous week. All reports were that the stope had been sound with no evi­
dence to give concern as to the crack and no pressure on the timber. The crew on the morning 
shift had all but completed the clean-up and it was intended to blast on the afternoon shift on 
the north half of the stope. The stope miner reported that roof and walls ·were checked over 
and considered safe. On the afternoon shift, the shift on which the accident occurred, the crew 
and the shift boss had checked roof and walls and considered them safe. The check had been 
made -by the shift boss approximately three-quarters of an hour before the accident. A stope 

leader and a driller were in the area with the four men who were killed. These two men are 
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(Mr. Witney, cont'd. )  . . . . •  the regular stope crew. Others were engaged to do casual clean­
up work in the stope under the direction of the stope leader. In this case the mass of rock 
which was all rock-bolted and had been apparently sound for over a week and supported by tim­
ber where it appeared to be necessary, gave way instantly and without warning. It is considered 
that no unusual circumstances sometimes resulting in what are known as "rock bursts" caused 
this occurrence, but the mass simply fell away under its own weight, and after a thorough in­
vestigation our people came to the conclusion that it was simply a very unfortunate accident. 

MR. ORLIKOW: I certainly claim no expert knowledge of this type of operation, but I ani 
struck by the -- what struck me about the report which we got from the Minister was that all 
the information which the Minister has is information which was given by people who work for 
the company, and that our people -- unless I missed something in the report -- that the em­
ployees of the government, employees of the department did not enter into looking into this situa­
tion until after the accident occurred. Now I'm not suggesting for a moment that this accident 
could have been avoided, that in this particular case that there was any dereliction on the part 
of the company or the people concerned, but I'm wondering, Mr. Chairman, just how much 
supervision does the Government of Manitoba, does the department take of this matter.  In other 
jurisdictions, in the United States for example , the federal department and some of the state 
departments do carry on some pretty regular investigations ,  routine investigations of what is 
being done , what precautionary measures are being taken, what timbering and all the rest of 
the work is being done , so that accidents will not occur. This doesn't mean that they don' t 
have accidents .  This doesn't mean -- and I am not suggesting for a moment that I have reason 
to think that this accident could have been avoided -- but I do think that as we develop an in­
creased number of mines and as more people go to work in the mines of this province that this 
House has a right to expect and the people of this province have a right to expect that the 
government of Manitoba will have an inspection departm ent which will be carrying on investiga­
tions which will be working with companies,  which will be working with the employees ,  not after 
accidents happen, because then it's too late, but before ; and about this , of course, the Minister 
has not reported. Now it may be that this is not the right pla<;!e . I took up with the Deputy 
Minister of Labour certain other procedures of the company at Thompson which had to do with 
safety, which I think are completely wrong, and it may be that the place to discuss them is un­
der the Departme nt of Labour, under the Workmen's Compensation Act, but I do think that we 
ought to get a report from the Minister as to the work which this department does, not after an 
accident takes place , but before. 

MR. WITNEY: Mr. Chairman, regular inspections are made of our mines and quarries 
in Manitoba and during the past year some 91 such inspections were made . We have an elec­
trical inspector and a mines inspector and we also in the past two years, with the increasing 
development of our mines in this province, have employed a ventilation engineer, and these 
people are making regular periodic check-ups of these mining areas and are prepared to look 
into anything which is drawn to their attention either by the employer or by the employee, and 
the mine up at Thompson had received its regular check -- I haven't got the exact date here 
with me -- prior to this accident, and our men have been in to Thompson since that accident 
as part of their regular routine operation. 

MR. A. J. REID (Kildonan): Mr . Speaker,  on this same subject, in talking to miners in 
the Manitoba area I understand that the provincial government is quite lax in imposing safety 
regulations and also in mine inspection. I am not sure whether the Minister or his Deputy 
Minister have ever been underground, but it's a very primitive and weird place to work under 
-- conditions as they exist at the present time in the mine -- and we must understand that any 
mine , their main concern is to get ore out at the cheapest cost possible, regardless of the wel­
fare of the men. -- (Interjection) -- That's true. You can talk to the miners .  And these mines 
they operate in a slap-hazard condition. -- (Interjection) -- Well, I don't know if you fellows 
ever worked in a mine but you go down there and you'll see . 

True , Mr. Chairman, the unions request safety regulations and different things for the 
men, and they also have firms going around promoting safety and selling safety equipment but, 
Mr. Chairman, it must be this government. Unions and these private corporations , they can't 
impose these safety regulations. It must be the government through their inspections and their 
inspectors .  I understand they have mining inspectors ,  but I think most inspection is done, Mr. 
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(Mr. Reid, cont1d. ) . . • • •  Chairman, from the General Manager's office on top instead of going 
down underground and doing their job. For there's talk in these miners that these inspectors 
come around, they never see them underground; they come to the office and sit on top, get 
everything from the manager and give him a clean slate. Well, Mr. Chairman, that's no way 
of doing the business of inspection. 

Also the matter of instruction information, Mr. Chairman. Just a while ago I read in 
the.paper, and I was speaking to a miner. A man's first day underground -- hired one day and 
they stuck him underground. Well, no man should be put underground after first day employ­
ment until he is instructed of the dangers and what to look for.  Stick a man underground; he's 
killed instantly first day; report it "accidental death" and the company just carries on the same 
as it carried on before. Another incident these miners told me about involved a cage which is 
similar to a freight elevator, Mr. Chairman. The only difference , in a freight elevator they 
have cables at the bottom and around and this is only suspended on one cable and controlled 
from above by a man watching the dials,  and they have a man down below called a "tender" to 
look after this cage. Once he is given the signal and he gets in that cage it can't stop until it 
comes to the next level, and they tell me they have an attachment that closes inside, safety 
bars ; and another bar on the outside to protect these big swinging doors swinging out, and also 
they have the roof -- it swings out to facilitate movement of long timbers and rails, whatever's 
required for underground construction. Well, this safety bar on the outside, Mr. Chairman, it 
required repairing for quite awhile. On this particular shift this fellow gave the signal to move 
and up it went, thl:l man on top. He had no way of knowing anything happened; his dials were 
moving, but this bar swung out and jammed up against the ceiling of this opening. The dial kept 
turning. What happened? The cable was stretching. Well finally this bar broke and this man 
shot through the top -- just shot out like a sling shot -- killed instantly. The miners told me 
the part the company done. They covered up; they camouflaged; they fixed everything up to 
show it hadn't been repaired or anything. When the mine inspector came down there he gave 
them a clean bill, everything in first class shape . Well, Mr. Chairman, I am no miner or no 
inspector, but if a man knows his job and he goes to look at a piece of equipment he can see 
whether it has been repaired recently or not, and I am sure whoever went on that inspection 
either inspected from the top or if he was down he didn •t look at it very closely to see that 
here's equipment that required repairs for a period of time, and after a man was killed it was 
repaired, and the company is still operating in a slap-hazard condition, like I said, and it 
exists throughout Manitoba right now, Mr. Chairman. 

MR. WITNEY: Mr. Chairman, the honourable member has made a very irresponsible 
statement. He has said in effect that our men are not going underground to inspect mines. He 
has said in effect that our men are doing nothing more than sitting up and talking with a mine 
manager and finding out whether or not there are. safe conditionE! underground, and I refute that 
statement very thoroughly and emphatically. Our men are underground, and if men draw to the 
attention of our inspector any areas- of hazard, they look at them. I have been underground in 
Manitoba mines and I have found that these mines are extremely well-kept underground. The 
mining companies in this province have mine safety committees ; they have safety engineers. 
We have mine safety rescue operations ; we carry on our inspections regularly, and in the 
case that the honourable member has made mention of -- this apparent cable which had stretched, 
which he calls a slap-hazard -- he has made a very serious accusation against them .  He has 
said that our men did not check it. So I want from him details ;  I want from him the name of the 
company; I want from him the time that this accident took place; where it took place ; the 
names of the men, and those who are making the accusations . Because I cannot believe, and I 
refuse to believe that our mining inspectors would be so careless on a situation such as that. 
That would have been thoroughly investigated and he must give me those names . He must give 
me the full details on that in order to justify his statement, and I am positive that he cannot do 
it. 

MR. PAULLEY: Mr. Chairman, on the 16th of February I asked by Order of Return for 
some information dealing with the death at Thompson. Subsequent to what we. though was an 
acceptance of the Orders for Return, in Votes and Proceedings one of the items was left out 
that I'd asked for .  ! wonder if the Minister's in a position to tell me now or to give us the in­
formation that I requested at that time insofar as the accident at Thompson was concerned. In 
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(Mr. Paulley, cont'd. ) . • . • .  the course of the debate on the request of the Order of Return, 
. the Attorney-General, if I remember correctly, stated that there was a copy of the evidence 

given at the Coroner's jury and in the debate suggested that it would be placed in the Library 
rather than this. However, the Votes and Proceedings of the day following, or for this parti­
cular day, left intact the three first points which included a copy of the evidence at the Coroner's 
Inquest, and I wonder now, Mr. Chairman, whether or not the Minister can tell me how far he's 
progressed in fulfilling the Order for Return. I only wish that I had had the full information be­
fore we came to this part of the estimates for the year, but unfortunately I haven't got the report 
as yet. I am wondering when I might be getting it. 

MR. WITNEY: That section of the Order for Return, Mr. Chairman, was considered to 
be an Internal Report from a member of the staff to the Minister .  In the statement that I have 
given on the basis of this accident at Thompson, the details are there. 

MR. PAULLEY: Mr. Chairman, . . • . .  also referred to the production of the evidence 
that was given at the Coroner's Inquest. That, when the record of Votes and Proceedings was 
shown for the next day, was accepted and I would like to know from the Attorney-General -­
because I think it's in his department that this matter is dealt with -- when I might be getting it. 

MR. LYON: Mr. Speaker, I can inform the Leader of the NDP that I left instructions 
with the department to have a copy of it obtained and lodged in the Library. I will endeavour to 
find out imm ediately whether that has been done. It may well be in the Library at the present 
moment, but I'll find out and report back. 

MR. PAULLEY: But I might also point out to the Honourable the Attorney-General, Mr. 
Chairman, that that portion of the Order for Return was recorded as having been accepted. 
Therefore I should be receivin� that as the result of my request. 

MR. LYON: . . . . .  the evidence being placed in the Library. We agreed the honourable 
m ember could have it subject to that condition, because as I mentioned to him at the time, or­
ders for transcripts are not ordinarily accepted because of the tremendous cost that might be 
involved in their procurement, but I think it met with his approval so long as he could see a 
copy. It happened that the evidence in this case was transcribed; a copy of it was obtained by 
my department for another department, and I undertook to have a copy placed in the Library 
for the· honourable member's perusal . I will see right away whether or not that has been done . 

MR. PAULLEY: I appreciate that, Mr. Chairman, but I again want to point out that as 
far as the Order for Return is recorded in Votes and Proceedings, while there was a deletion 
of Clause (4) which dealt with the Internal Report that the Minister apparently has just given, 
the other three items were accepted, and therefore I should receive a copy of the report. 

MR. LYON: My honourable friend, Mr. Chairman, can continue his argument on that 
regard with the Speaker,  but I'll undertake to carry out what I said I would do at the time . 

MR. PAULLEY: . . • . . . .  Mr. Chairman, the Minister mentioned these reservations 
and I rejected them at the time, and then in the Votes and Proceedings , as I say, it indicated 
acceptance and I think it should be followed through once it's accepted. 

MR. CHAffiMAN: Resolution 57 passed? 
MR. ORLIKOW: Mr. Chairman, let's not be in such a hurry to rush. I want to get 

through this business as much as anybody else but this is pretty important. We want to make 
sure that we do everything possible so there won't be another accident before this House meets 
next year. Now I would like to know from the -- I am not making any charges personally about 
the work which the staff people who work for the department do, but I would like to know -- it's 
all very well for the Minister to say we have mine inspectors -- I don't know whether he said 
"a mine inspector" or "mine inspectors" -- and we have an inspector in charge of ventilation; 
we have an inspector in charge of something else, he said; but the fact is, Mr. Chairman, 
that there's been a pretty extensive development of mines in the last half dozen years . We 
have a tremendous operation at Thompson, we have several new operations on the part of the 
Hudson Bay Mining and Smelting Company outside of Flin Flon, and I would like to know, Mr. 
Chairman, I would like to feel certain that, not only that the people we have are competent 
people but I would like to feel more certain than I do that we have enough people to do the job 
which is required. Now I would like to know how many people are there on the staff doing this 
kind of inspection and how many people were there, let's say three years ago or five years 
ago. I think the House and this Committee are entitled to this kind of information. 
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MR. WITNEY: Mr .  Chairman, we have a chief mining engineer, who looks after the 
safety and a mines inspector, an electrical inspector and a ventilation engineer inspector. The 
.ventilation engineer man, as I mentioned before, has been brought in in the past two years be­
cause that was where we were receiving most of our problems. Since I have come into this 
department we have increased by one with the ventilation engineer, and I can assure the honour­
able member that up to the present time we feel we have enough inspectors for the amount of 
work that has been done , or the amount of development that has taken place in the province, 
particularly with the addition of the ventilation engineer. We, as we need inspectors, will in­
clude them in the estimates in the period to come, but at the present time we are able to ade­
quately do the job in all fields of mining in this province. 

MR. ORLIKOW: I can't understand that. I am one of those people who believe that when 
the Province of Manitoba hires people to work that the people put in a full day's work. Now, if 
we have the same staff now, except for the ventilating engineer, as we had three years ago, and 
we now have this tremendous development at Thompson , and we now have the new development 
at, is it Chisel Lake , and Stall Lake, now if the same people are able to do all these plus what 
we had before, I wonder what they were doing before we had them .  Now surely if they were 
fully occupied before and the work which they were doing was necessary before, surely they 
can't be doing the same work they were doing before plus adequate inspection of these tremen­
dous mines which are e mploying in the neighbourhood of between two and three thousand people. 
These are not small operations . These are tremendous operations� Now if they were fully oc­
cupied before, how can they do the same inspection which they did before and do the inspections 
of the· new mining operations which have been opened, and that leads me , Mr. Chairman, to ask 
another question. Are there joint meetings of the people who do this work, of the various pro­
vinces, and if there are, are there any standards which have been evolved, and how do the 
standards in the Province of Manitoba, safety standards , inspection standards and stanilards 
with regard to staff, compare with the operations in other provinces ? After all, there are 
large mining operations in Ontario; there are large mining operations in British Columbia, 
and I would like to know how our operations compare with what's done in the other provinces. 
I want to reiterate again, Mr. Chairman, that this is a very lucrative field to the province and 
a very lucrative field to the companies, but it's a field which can be extremely dangerous to 
the people who go to work there. After all, a person doesn't have much chance if an accident 
takes place there . I think we have a duty to perform to see that everything possible that can 
be done. is being done. 

MR. WITNEY: Mr. Chairman, during the Mines Minister's conference which is held 
every year, there is a committee working on vario.us safety devices such as mine-hoisting 
ropes as one example. Our men are always represented at these Mines Ministers conferences .  
They are in consultation with their counterparts in the other provinces ; they keep abreast to 
technical journals and they have a very extensive technical library with all the new methods, 
the new ideas , and I would say that the Province of Manitoba can stand up against any province 
in this Dominion in its standards of safety inspection and standards of the people that it employs . 
I come from the north country, and while I did not work underground I can recall accidents that 
took place up in the north country and I can recall the heartbreak that . these accidents cause 
among wives and families and among relatives ,  and I can assure the honourable member that 
if I ever come to the position where I feel that we are falling down in this matter of mine safety 
inspection that that matter will be remedied, and remedied fast. 

MR; ORLIKOW: Mr .  Chairman, that's a very admirable state ment by the Minister but 
it still doesn't answer the question which I asked. I simply said that I think that the province 
has a responsibility to make sure that the province is doing everything which is required, and 
it seems to me -- and I say it again - that we are to a very large extent depending on the in­
spection services carried on by the individual companies. This may be very good; it may not 
be very good. I am not disposed to leave it to them alone. I personally made no suggestions 
that the calibre of the staff that we have is not adequate . I made no suggestion that the work 
which they're doing is not adequate . All I am saying is that if we have the s am e  number of 
people that we had before, obviously they must have spread themselves out thinner than they 
were doing before. There can be no other explanation. And if they were doing a full day's 
work before then obviously they're not doing the same painstaking, careful inspection which 
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(Mr. Orlikow, cont1d. ) . . • • .  they used to do, because they have so much more to do. The 
Minister hasn't replied to that question at all, and I think we're entitled to an answer to that 
question. 

MR. WITNEY: Mr. Chairman, as to what the department did prior to my coming into 
office I am not aware,  but I do know that since I came into office I have assured myself that 
the mining inspection in this province has been more than adequate and we do not either rely 
upon the mining companies to take care of inspection or the safety of men. We are inspecting 
on routine , regular checks, and we have been able to do so adequately for all the mining opera­
tions that have been taking place in this province. 

MR. PAULLEY: Mr. Chairman, on this point that's been raised by my colleague from 
St. John's. I note that he drew the attention of the Committee to the expansion in the mining 
industry, particularly up north, but I notice that insofar as the staff is concerned that the num­
bers listed for the Mines Branch, of employees in the Mines Branch for the year under consi­
deration, · is 51 total staff in the Mines Branch, and in the estimates for the year ending March 
3 1st, 1959 there was provision for 53 of a staff. Now that would indicate that the point that my 
honourable colleague has raised is a very valid one, that we have had considerable expansion 
in the mining industry in the Province of Manitoba, and at the same time, however, that in this 
expanding department we have less numbers of employees than we had for the year ending 
March 31st, 1959.  So it seem s  to me that the points raised by my colleague are perfectly legi­
timate and that it is an indication that despite the expansion in the mining industry there are 
less staff in the department than there were two or three years ago. 

MR. CHAffiMAN: . . • • • • . . . . . . . . .  

MR. ORLIKOW: Mr. Chairman, I would like to know from the Minister -- the Minister 
says -- I am just speaking of what I remember as best I can -- he said there are routine checks 
and there are spot checks and so on and so on. I'd like to know how often are the mines at 
Thompson or at Flin Flon or at Lynn Lake, how often are they inspected? I'd like to know spe­
cifically how often is -- the Minister says there are regular inspections . How often are they? 
Once a year ? Is that what the Minister considers regular ? Twice a year; once a month? I'd 
like to know, Mr. Chairman , because it may be that a year from now we will be discussing 
this under another accident and I think that the Minister should put on the record now what he 
considers adequate. , 

MR. WITNEY: Mr .  Chairman, I am not sure of the exac t numbers of time that the 
mines have been inspected in Manitoba; but I believe that I am quite safe in saying that they 
have been inspected more than once a month in this province . The mining inspectors go on a 
tour and when they go on the tour they cover all the mines that there are. If there are spot 
checks , of course, they go to the particular area where there are difficulties.  I'd like also to 
mention to the honourable members that we are working very closely with the Department of 
Health on various sections of mine safety, particularly in ventilation, in that field, and I did 
mention· that we have done 91 inspections during this past year . That 91,  when you break it 
down to the operations , will indicate that there has been a considerable amount of inspection 
take place in the province. 

Apart from that I think that is the answer, excep(to reiterate once again that if we get to 
· the position where we haven't got enough that we will get more. 

MR. CHAffiMAN: 7-passed. 
MR. ORLI KOW: Mr. Chairman, I'd like this to stand and for the Minister to bring in -­

·it shouldn't be too difficult for the Minister to bring in a report and put on the record from his 
department, the number of inspections that are made and how frequently they are and so on. 

MR. WITNEY: Mr. Chairman, ---
MR. FROESE: Mr. Chairman, I'd like to touch on a diffe-rent matter, in connection with 

mining though. We all know that our sources of revenue are limited. Either we get them 
through taxation or we borrow them ,  or we get them through our natural resources in the way 
of royalties.  

In 1957, if I am correct, International Nickel came into Manitoba and at  that time an 
agreement was made with the government of the Province of Manitoba in which the government 
made an agreement whereby they would get certain monies in lieu of not making an assessment 
on the company property. My questions being; has the government reconsidered this agreement, 
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(Mr. Froese, cont'd) . . . . . . •  because as I understand it there was a provision that after 5 
years' time this agreement could be reviewed and a revision could be made at that time ? 
Further, I think at the time they entered i nto this agreement the prospects of the grade of ore 
that they thought would be mined would be much lower than it presently is, and whether or not 
a revision could be made upwards. Further to that, I understand that Ontario and Quebec for 
instance have increased their percentage of royalty from 9 to 13 percent, while I thlnk Manitoba 
is still on the 8 percent if I am correct. First of all then, I would like to know whether any re­
consideration has been given to this agreement or whether they're proposing to reconsider it at 
all. 

MR. REID: Mr. Chairman, I have a question .::m the same thing. I got a press release 
here dated January 9th, '62: "Metal output doubled. New mines producing. Manitoba's pro­
duction of minerals more than doubled in 196 1, " and so forth. 

Now, Mr. Chairman, what does this mean, this new income , to the economy of Manitoba? 
True , it  means putting some unemployed people to work, but then when you look through the 
estimates that this government is going to borrow for the coming year, some of this money will 
be used for power houses, some will be used for roads and so forth, to assist these mining 
corporations . Then when you look at the financial page of any newspaper or financial magazine 
and you see what these substantial properties, corporations , announce at the end of the year, it 
makes me wonder if they're paying a fair share of taxation in comparison to the average citi­
zen. But I'm sure, Sir, if they were they could not declare these enormous profits at the end 
of the year. And my party, Sir, has always advocated, and insisted, that such corporations, 
especially when it involved natural resources, should pay their fair share of taxation in the 
society in which they exist. Thus we would all share the economy of natural resources , which 
rightfully belong to the people of this province, to be shared and enjoyed by one and all alike. 

MR . MOLGAT: Mr. Chairman, the Saskatchewan area adjoining Manitoba in the vicinity 
of Esterhazy is proceeding with a large development of potash. This has been in the works 
for some time . Earlier this year there was some indication that there might be some potash 
developments in Manitoba. I wonder if the Minister could tell us something about this . What 
is the likelihood of a large commercial developmmt in this field? 

MR. WITNEY: · We have had a company investigating the potash reserves adjacent to Sask­
atchewan for some time. They have been on a reservation and have drilled six holes up to the 
present time , and recently the company went to a lease of some -- I'm not sure of the exact 
number of acres -- but a considerable number of acres, and the activity up there is still in­
creasing. I think it's encouraging to see that the company has gone to lease. 

MR. MOLGAT: Is it likely, Mr. Chairman, that we will have commercial development 
of potash within the near future in Manitoba? 

· 

MR. WITNEY: That's rather difficult to say, Mr. Chairman, because the problems of 
mining potash are quite extensive. The markets have to be considered, and I would say that 
there is every hope of it, yes , in the future . 

MR . PAULLEY: Mr. Chairman, I understand that this item is going to stand, but I would 
like to ask the Honourable the Minister, in connection with Clause (c) of 7 ,  I note that there is 
about $130, 000 increase in the Development Investigations . I wonder if the Minister could tell 
us what he intends to do and why the increase in this amount. 

MR. WITNEY: The increase, Mr. Chairman, is to provide for the aero-magnetic survey 
which will be done in conjunction with the Dominion Government this year. It will be covered 
over a period of three years and it will involve an aero-magnetic survey of three fairly substant­
ial sections of the province during the next three years . It is an arrangement that was brought 
about by the Mines Ministers Conference where the Mines Ministers approached Ottawa to see 
if they would assist in the aero-magnetic survey of the precambrian areas of their province.  
The federal government has consented to go along 50% and Manitoba is taking its first activity 
this year. The number of line miles that will be done on this aero-magnetic survey will be 
50, 000 at a half mile apart. And we expect that by the end of the three-year period that three­
fifths of the province will be done . This information will be put on maps which will be prepared 
in the following spring of the aero-magnetic survey for the availability of all the public. 

MR. MOLGAT: Mr. Chairman, some years ago there was an extensive mining develop­
ment in what we might call the Bird Lake or the Cat Lake area. Since then this seem� to have 
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(Mr. Molgat, cont1d) • . . . . • .  gone back. The mines which were in operation there have for 
. the largest part closed, although there has been some additional development in the Province 

of Ontario, very close to the Manitoba border. In particular, at Gordon Lake and also at 
Rainer Lake. These are both within, oh, some 10 or 12 miles of the Manitoba border. Some 
years ago as well some road developm ent was begun in that area and the roads into Bird Lake 
and Cat Lake were built. My understanding is that surveys were undertaken and some work 
as well on the extension of the Cat Lake road to connect with Beresford Lake and on to Bissett, 
but since this government's taken over, there seems to have been no further development in 
this field and the plans that were laid appear to have just stopped there. 

My honourable friends at one time spoke as well about a road along the east side of Lake 
Winnipeg, and at one time I think the Minister of Industry and Commerce incij.cated this was all 
set to go, but once again, we've heard nothing further about this , and I suggest to the govern­
ment that this matter of road development in these areas is absolutely essential. I don't think 
that these mines can operate efficiently today without an adequate road system. There are 
of course additional benefits once the roads are put into the areas. It's not strictly for the bene­
fit of the mine s .  To begin with it makes exploration easier; it has as well the other aspects 
which my honourable friend is interested in, that is, the tourist, the fishing, commercial as 
well as sport. I think that my honourable friend should pay close attention to this area. It's 
very accessible; it's in the southern half of the province ; freight factors are an advantage to 
this area, and we should be paying more attention to the road development in there. 

On checking into the area I find that at the moment there is only the Ontario mines operat­
ing. In Manitoba we had, until 195 8 ,  a mine at Cat Lake, the Lithium Corporation. It's no 
longer operating. At Bernic Lake we had the Camaloy Mines. It was operating, I think, until 
about a year ago, and it's no lt:mger operating. At Cat Lake there was the New Manitoba Mine 
and it's also not operating, although I understand it will probably be in operation within the next 
year. But right in Ontario, Mr. Chairman, at Gordon Lake , the Nickel Mining and Smelting 
Corporation are proceeding now with an extensive development. I understand that they have up 
to 50 men underground at the moment and that they're proceeding with the construction of a 
mill. A little closer to the Manitoba border at R ainer Lake the Norfax Mining Company is in­
terested in going back in production again, I understand. A little further on -- that's some five 
miles past Gordon Lake, which would make it some 17 miles inside Ontario -- there is the 
development at Rex Lake by International Nickel. They are presently apparently involved in 
some extensive developments there. 

Now, at the moment, Mr. Chairman, these Ontario firms are doing the majority of . their 
purchasing, and all of their hauling, through Manitoba, because the road access comes in 
through Lac du Bonnet and on through the Bird Lake Road and that way. And this means that a 
good deal of their production, a good deal of their purchasing is done in Lac du Bonnet or in 
Winnipeg. I'm told, however, that there is a good deal of pressure coming in Ontario -- pres­
sure being put on the Ontario Government to proceed and build a road north from Minaki. There 
is already apparently a road from Minaki to Caribou Falls and it would not be too difficult to 
proceed from Caribou Falls for the north to connect with the Gordon Lake Development. 

Now I suggest, Mr. Chairman, that this is very important to the Province of Manitoba, 
that it's important to us that we retain the access to this mining area because it cim mean sub­
stantial additional employment and business to the Province of Manitoba. 

I would like to ask the Minister if he couldn't at this time have an investigation made of the 
railway that goes from Lac du Bonnet to Point du Bois . There was some discussion, some 
statement earlier this year, that City Hydro who own and operate this line were going to cease 
operating it. Now it seems to me not too difficult to consider the extension of that railway line 
from Point du Bois where it presently stops , along the north side of the Winnipeg River and 
into the area of Ontario where these developments are now. If the Nickel Mining and Smelting 
Corporation at Gordon Lake are proceeding with their mill -- which they are -- there should be 
continuous . movement out of there. I would suggest that before letting City Hydro abandon this 
line, that we should have a very careful inves tigation made of the possibility of taking this over, 
or having the federal government take it over under the CNR, and extending it so as to keep on 
passing that important mineral area for the Province of Manitoba. Presently the CNR are ex­
tending rail lines in other areas for mining developments. They're doing so in Northern Alberta, 
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(Mr. Molgat, cont'd) • . . • •  I understand. They've done some in the Province of Quebec and 
Labrador. And here we have already a section of a line built, has been operating, and I would 
think with not too much additional expenditure it could be extended and made to pass into this 
very rich mining area. I thilik if this were done, and if there were better transportation facili­
ties through there ,  that a number of the mines that were in operation previously, possibly would 
find it once again possible to get back into operation, and that this would be of important assis­
tance to that whole area and to Manitoba as a whole. Now I don't know whether this is economic­
ally feasible or not but it seems to me a shame that an asset which is there now, some several 
miles of line would be abandoned without having a very thorough investigation. 

MR. WITNEY: Mr. Chairman, I think I can put it in brief words the difficulties in the 
southeast corner of Manitoba. Most of the mines the honourable member is speaking of are 
mainly lithium mines and their development will really have to wait until there is a demand for 
lithium and for caesium which can be obtained at the Bernic Lake Mine . 

The mine on the other side in Ontario is a different base material and I'm not sure wheth­
er it's a copper find or a nickel find, but it is not lithium. And lithium is a product that is not 
wanted to any great degree at the present time and until it is the development there , on lithium 
at any rate , will have to wait until such time there is development. The company in question 
came to us some time ago to ask if we would allow them to have gravel, free of charge, so that 
they could break through an access road across the border, and to transport in supplies .  That 
was done . We have co-operated with that company and they have expressed their thanks for that 
co-operation. And we have been watching that development very closely. I think as a result of 
the Manitoba co-operation with the mine in its early stages, that the pressure has been develop­
ing in Ontario for the road to come up through Kenora so that they can siphon off some of the 
trade which has been coming through Manitoba. 

MR. MOLGAT: Mr. Chairman, I appreciate what the Minister says about the lithium de­
velopment but I think that there are other minerals in that area as well. It seems to me that 
some of the Manitoba mines were producing other minerals. However ,  insofar as the Ontario 
mines are concerned, they certainly are not in the lithium field and they are proceeding. The 
one at Gordon Lake is now developing underground as well as proceeding with the mill. And 
certainly transportation will be one of the key factors in retaining this trade for Manitoba. Now, 
will the Minister be prepared to investigate the possibility of this rail line and seeing if any­
thing can be done so that we would tap this as we have been doing and continue to hold it for 
Manitoba? 

MR. WITNEY: The area of southeastern Manitoba is rich in various minerals, that is 
quite true, and one of the problems that the Bernic Lake mine has had has been the conglomer­
ation of minerals that has been present and trying to find some method of being able to economic­
ally extract them from the ore. They are at the present time, or have been doing some work 
on minerology in the mine . I was down the mine and I was shown the mineralogist's map of the 
various metals that are there, and they are there but they are all quite entwined with each 
other. As for the suggestion of the railroad, it's an interesting suggestion, Mr. Chairman, and 
certainly the suggestion will not pass unnoticed. 

MR. MOLGAT: Could the Minister indicate what the plans are for the extension of the 
Cat Lake road to connect it with the developments further north in the Bissett - . . • . . .  Be res­
ford Lake area? 

MR. WITNEY: No plans for extension of that road at the present time, although we are 
watching this development over on the Ontario side of the border. 

MR. MOLGAT: Mr. Chairman . . . . . . . . .  surveys were made on this road and some 
clearing, some years ago ? 

MR. WITNEY: Yes there were Mr. Chairman. To my knowledge there were surveys and 
some clearing made on that road at a time when it was expected that the lithium mines would 
develop, but they didn' t develop. 

MR. MOLGAT: . • . . . . . .  operating now in the northern area. Bissett is still in operation, 
is it not, and in through there -- I understand there's still extensive exploration of the Wallace 
Lake and that area. Is it not considered advisable to make that connection? There is only a 
small connection now still left. I am told as well that there are important tourist possibilities 
in through there, and surely if the plans were laid for the work some years ago, if. the survey 
was made and some clearing, it would seem wise to proceed with the extension. I don't · 
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(Mr. Molgat, cont'd) . . . • . . . • understand why the hold-up. 

MR. CHAffi MAN: 'The Member for Rhineland. 

MR. FROESE: Mr. Chairman, I think my question that I put before deserves an answer. 
After all, the cost of living index has risen considerably since that agreement was reached, 

and surely the Province of Manitoba could s tand some additional revenue. 'Therefore, I'd like 
to have an answer to my question whe ther the government is considering reviewing the agree­

ment. 

MR. WITNEY: Mr. Chairman, my attention was diverted at the time that the honourable 
me mber was making his remarks . I'.in not aware of the agreement that he is speaking of. I'd 
like him to explain which agreement it is , please again . 

MR. FROESE: 'The agreement with International Nickel Company -- betwee n the Province 
of Manitoba and the International Nickel Company. 

MR. WITNEY: I gather the honourable member is speaking about the royalties .  The agree­
ment with the International Nickel Company was s igned some time ago and we are at the pre-
sent time negotiating with the m on the royalty rate . 'The royalty rate is set at 8% .of the mining 
income. We are negotiating with them at the present time on just what that mining income will 
be and in the process of those negotiations we have sent our men into Ontario to ascertain the 
m anner in which the Ontario Government is working with the International Nickel Company and 

to assure ourselves that we are getting, or we will get when the final negotiations are completed, 
a fair return for the Province of Manitoba of this natural resource. 

MR. CHAffiMAN: . . . . . . .  57 - passed; 5 8 ,  Air Service, passed? 
MR. PAULLEY; Mr. Chairman, it is my understanding that the Minister said he would 

be agreeable to hold No . 7 for my colleague from St. John' s. 

MR. WITNEY: I don't recall saying that I would be agreeable to holding No. 57 , Mr. 
Chairman, but I did make the commitment that we would have a complete breakdown of the in­
spec tions that have been made during this past year in mine safety in the province. 

MR. ORLIKOW: It's assumed that if the Minister made a s tatem ent on it we could then 
discuss ··--we can certainly not discuss it very intelligently unless we have that information. 
Members on this side -- I wish the member .for that area were here when we were discussing 
his area; he doesn't seem to be very interested in his own cons tituents -- but we c an hardly 

discuss intelligently whether the job is being done adequately unless we have that inform ation, 
and I don't want to be difficult but it seems to me that it's not asking too much that this matter 

stand over so that we can discuss it if we're not satisfied with the information. It may be that 

we 'll be very satisfied but I certainly would like to have a chance to comment on the figure s we 
get from the Minister when we get them �  

MR. WITNEY: Mr. Chairman, o n  that basis I'm not worried about having this matter 
stand over at all because I am very much convinced that we have done a more than adequate job 
in mine safety and we can hold this item over and the information can be available for the hon­
ourable members to discuss at will. And as for the Honourable Member for Churchill , he is 
attending a Hudson Bay Route Association Convention which is being held in Saskatchewan at 
Lloydminster . He is on his way across there at any rate , and which has a very vital effec t  
upon his constituency. 

MR. CAMPBELL: Mr. Chairman, I have not asked the ques tions that I was interested in 
because I understood that the matter was going -- this number 7 was going to be allowed to stand, 
that I would ask the m later on. But if it's standing for only one purpose then I think perhaps I 
should raise the question that I was interes ted in. Like my honourable friend from Gladstone I 
happened to have an information section bulletin with me. It deals -- very recent vintage Mr. 
Chairman -- because it's dated March 23rd and it forecasts a substantial oil development at 
Pierson, and I am sure that all the ones of us who have been paying attention to the oil potential 
of the Province of Manitoba will be glad to see that there are at least indications of the area ex­
panding again. For I've been noticing the reports that have been issuing and the annual report 
of the department, and the oil production in Manitoba has been declining, so anything in the way 
of an expansion is very welcome and I notice that not only Pierson is mentioned, but also the 
Tilston and Boissevain areas . My recollection is that Pierson had already had some oil explora­
tion work; in fact that there were some wells had been proven in that area but had been c apped. 
My geography may not be completely accurate though. Perhaps it was not right at or near 
Pierson but in that general area. Are there some indications recently of a renewal of interest 

March 28th, 1962 Page 1181 



(Mr. Campbell, cont'd) . . • • • .  in Boissevain, at Pierson, at Tilston? I gather that there are. 
And then the other matter that I was going to comment on that's contained in the same 

release is the fact that Mr. Witney said that Manitoba's refining capacity would be greatly ex­
panded if plans work out for a third refinery in Metropolitan Winnipeg. Is there likelihood of 
another refinery here soon? Then the last sentence deals with a refinery as presently under 
construction at The Pas. Could the Minister give us some information on those three or four 
matters ? 

MR. WITNEY: A refinery is being developed in The Pas area, Mr. Chairman. I am not 
sure just how far the plans for the third refinery in Winnipeg area have advanced, but if these 
refineries do go ahead here in Manitoba we do not have any rationing of our oil because we are 

· able to consume more than we produce . Thus if we are able to get these refineries going it 
means that we will be able to take more production from our immediate oil fields in the south­
west corner. I think perhaps we are overlooking one of the most important aspects of the oil 
fields down there, and that is the unitization which we expect will be completed -- the agree­
ment will be completed this year -- and then flooding will take place in the North Virden­
Scallion field and once flooding commences we will be able to increase our capacity by some 30 
million barrels. 

MR. CA:MPBELL: . • . • • . . •  I hadn't mentioned that part which is contained in the same ­
report because I have been quite familiar with that operation, having seen it at work in the 
area a few years ago. Mr. Chairman, is the Honourable Minister at liberty to tell us the com­
pany that's building a refinery or that's expected to build one in the Metropolitan area? 

MR. WITNEY: I am sorry, Mr. Chairman, I do not have that information. The Minister 
of Industry and Commerce, who probably has it, is not here. 

MR. CAMPBELL : . . . . • •  won't ask both questions because I know that there's a disposi­
tion on the other side of the House not to tie the two questions up, but if he can tell me either 
one thing or the other; that is either the name or if they're getting assistance from the depart­
ment. I won't ask both at one time but what I would prefer to know would be the name and then 
we'll scout around about the other part later on. Perhaps I should ask this question -- the 
other one of the Minister of Industry and Commerce as well - - but is the refinery at The Pas 
proceeding satisfactorily and on schedule ? 

MR. WITNEY: I believe it's proceeding satisfactorily. As to the question on schedule, 
I am sorry I can't answer that question. 

MR. E. R. SCHREYER (Brokenhead) : Mr. Chairman, does the Minister know whether 
this third refinery is -- could it be the BA proposed refinery which company has been trying 
to acquire land in East St. Paul ? Could that be the third one ? 

MR. WITNEY: I'm sorry Mr. Chairman, I c·an't answer that. 
MR. CHAIRMAN: Resolution 58. 
MR. E. I. DOW (Turtle Mountain) : Mr. Chairman, I am informed that there is some 

agreement or will be some agreement entered into the transport of oil from the Williston Basin 
to Cromer. Has the Minister any information to impart to the committee on that? 

MR. WITNEY: Mr. Chairman, the Matador Pipeline Company received the approval from 
the National Energy Board to transport oil from North Dakota in bond through Cromer but the 
matter as to whether or not the pipeline will be built depends upon -- I gather permission tO 
come yet from the United States. 

MR. DOW: . . . . . . . . .  effect on the quotas of refineries in Manitoba? 
MR. WITNEY: No Mr. Chairman, not to my knowledge, because the oil passes in bond 

through the pipe line. 
MR. CHAffiMAN: I'm letting 57 stand open. I think this would be a good time to call it 

5:30. Committee rise and report. Mr. Speaker, the Committee of Supply has adopted certain 
resolutions , directed me to report the same and asks leave to sit again. 

MR. MARTIN: I beg to move , seconded by the Honourable Member for Brandon that the 
report of the committee be received. 

Mr. Speaker presented the motion and after a voice vote declared the motion carried. 
HON. STEWART E. McLEAN (Minister of Education) (Dauphin): I move, seconded by the 

Honourable the Minister of Mines and Resources that the House do now adjourn. 
Mr. Speaker presented the motion and after a voice vote declared the motion carried and 

the House adjourned until 2:30 Thursday afternoon. 
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